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Mission Statement

As it has grown hand in hand with the development of Japan’s economy, Kanamoto has devoted its full resources to
both infrastructure construction and to restoration efforts in the wake of natural disasters. Following the unprecedented
disaster caused by the Great East Japan Earthquake as well, we have considered it our mission to utilize our past ex-
perience to the fullest extent possible as we work together for Japan’s restoration and revival. Furthermore, with infra-
structure in urgent need of repair or replacement in every region of Japan, Kanamoto will concentrate its full capabili-

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included as part of the Kanamoto Co., Ltd. plans and strategies described in
this report, other than statements of actual past facts, are descriptions of the Company’s
outlook concerning future operating results and are assumptions based on information
currently available. These descriptions of the future outlook contain known risks and
unidentified risks, as well as other uncertainty factors, and the actual management
performance and operating results of Kanamoto Co., Ltd. may vary substantially from the
descriptions provided herein.
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ties and work to ensure Japan’s safety and peace of mind. ) 64 Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
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seek our own possibilities. As it ardently pushes ahead with each measure, Kanamoto will focus on achieving further quidelines. 68 EtFIpLEE
growth. @ Throughout this report, amounts of less than ¥1 million are truncated except in Audit Reports
the financial statements, where figures of less than ¥1 million are rounded. S
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| am pleased to report on the operating activities of
Kanamoto Co., Ltd. during the Business Period ended
October 31, 2014 and discuss our policies for the future.

During this business period, Japan's economy
maintained its move toward recovery during the first
half. Thanks to economic measures taken by the current
administration, and a significant expansion of the money
supply, a recovery in corporate earnings was evident, led
by strong performance among export-oriented firms that
was driven by depreciation of the yen. The employment
situation also improved. Conditions shifted from April,
however, as personal consumption slumped following
an increase in the consumption tax hike, and household
spending and corporate profits came under pressure
from an upward creep in prices. Recent GDP figures have
become negative as well, heightening the uncertainty of
the future economic outlook.

Domestically, construction demand is exhibiting a
recovery trend, and the Kanamoto Group will respond
to the growth in construction demand by continuing to
structure its asset portfolio to match customers' needs.
Furthermore, we remain conscious of the mission and
role of equipment rental as critical social infrastructure,
and will do our best to help restore areas stricken by
disaster. Work has also begun on two major projects: the
Tokyo 2020 Olympic and Paralympic Games to be held
in Tokyo, and the Linear Shinkansen. With concentrated
investment projected over the short term, we will remain
focused on the capital expenditures necessary to respond
to this demand, based on our conviction that equipment
rental will fulfill an even greater role in the years ahead.

In our overseas operations, which we have positioned
as an engine for medium to long-term growth, we will
continue to concentrate on the expansion of Kanamoto's
business in China and Singapore and seek to expand
earnings by working to reliably capture the vigorous
demand in mainland China, Hong Kong, and Singapore,
while also studying expansion into ASEAN markets.

We look forward to continuing to receive your unwavering
support and encouragement for the Kanamoto Group in
the future.

[C Jamamty
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2013 2014 2014

SR E NS Consolidated operating results
Pl Net sales ¥ 110,831 ¥ 125,555 $ 1,148,301
=€ ik Operating income 11,392 16,454 150,489
BEAR Ordinary income 11,073 16,078 147,049
L HRAE Net income 5,809 9,299 85,046

B OB A Y BRI R ROE 12.3% 15.8% 15.8%

[RE=REdR Dividend payout ratio 11.4% 13.6% 13.6%
FERE Plant and equipment investment 28,348 30,625 280,098
EFERFBUIRRE Consolidated financial position
B Total assets 169,250 188,491 1,723,903
HERE Net assets 56,192 65,513 599,172

BHOBAREE Equity ratio 32.2% 33.6% 33.6%
EBEFvryYa - 700D Consolidated cash flows
BEERICLSF vy - 70— Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 20,759 24,782 226,657
BEEEICLDF v vya - 70— Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities -1,117 -3,374 -30,866
M EEcLBF vy - 7O~ Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities -6,532 -22,405 -204,919
HENORSREYHIARA S Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 32,957 31,980 292,486
1TV 1EER Information per share of common stock YFEn Us. do';;'; Note)
L HAGR 2 Net income ¥ 175.50 ¥ 258.02 $2.35
fEE Net assets 1,513.49 1,758.24 16.08
FHEEE Dividends per share 20.00 35.00 0.32

*RRENTVBEK NIVEEEIE. 2014F10831HIREDSH L ZDRBAEL — M FIL=10934HIC KV BELTVET,
Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US $1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
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Growth trajectory highlighted by consolidated net sales
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Long-term Management Plan “Metamorphose”
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Response to the Great East Japan Earthquake

—HLBRWERICFEIT, 5|ERESICEHTVEET,

We will continue our efforts to respond, to achieve the quickest recovery possible.

FiB(t. MELTHERTR

Full-scale restoration works accelerate
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NKEHSDEE - BE EXE- £ (GYDWV) DF
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EFRELHO=ERFERASS N RIVIE
Construction work on Sanriku Coastal Road Tunnel 45 in
Miyako City, lwate Prefecture

T
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With prospects for most debris processing to be completed
by the end of March 2014 in sight, restoration works in the
earthquake disaster-stricken areas are underway in earnest.
Beginning with the Collective Relocation Disaster Prevention
Promotion Projects (relocation to higher ground), levee and
bank protection works are being carried out continuously in
lwate, Miyagi and Fukushima, the three so-called damaged
prefectures.

In January 2015 the Reconstruction Agency announced a fis-
cal 2015 draft initial budget of 3.9 trillion yen for the Special
Account for Reconstruction from the Great East Japan Earth-
quake, making it clear total funding will come to 4.2 trillion yen
(reconstruction effort basis) when combined with the prior year’s
supplementary budget. The main purpose is to contribute to
programs that will accelerate recovery of the stricken areas.
These include Rebuilding Houses and Reconstructing Commu-
nities, Reconstructing and Revitalizing Fukushima, Reconstruc-
tion of Industries and Livelihoods, (Health and Living Support)
for the Disaster-Affected, and Creation of ‘New Tohoku’.

EFREFEHTOREERTIEC BET
SEROERICERTEEANILEIIAT

Enormous belt conveyer used to transport soil
produced during elevated land construction
works at Rikuzentakata City in Iwate Prefecture

| 8 \Kanamoto 2015
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Reconstruction roads and reconstruction support roads
aim to speed opening to traffic

The development of reconstruction roads and reconstruction sup-
port roads has been enumerated as one key project for Rebuilding
Houses and Reconstructing Communities. The Ministry of Land, In-
frastructure, Transport and Tourism is seeking to quickly open roads
to traffic by cutting the time from project approval to completion by
roughly half the time normally required.

One reconstruction road, the Sanriku Coastal Road, is scheduled
to be opened to traffic between the Shizugawa Interchange (IC)
and South Sanriku Coast IC in Miyagi Prefecture in fiscal 2016, and
between the South Sanriku Coast IC and Utatsu IC in fiscal 2017.
When combined with the stretch between the Tome Towa IC and
Shizugawa IC scheduled to open to traffic in fiscal 2015, the road
will be open from the Sendai Kohoku IC to Utatsu.

In lwate Prefecture, the Sanriku Coastal Road is scheduled to open
to traffic in fiscal 2017 between both the Yamada IC and Miyako
Minami IC and the Taro Kita IC and Iwaizumi Ryusendo IC. The in-
terval between the Tono-Sumita IC and Tono IC on the Kamaishi-
Hanamaki Road, another reconstruction support road in the pre-
fecture, is expected to open in fiscal 2018 and link the road from
Hanamaki Junction to the Kamaishi Nishi IC.

On the Soma-Fukushima Road, a reconstruction support road in
Fukushima Prefecture, the interval between the Abukuma Higashi
IC and Abukuma IC, and the interval between the Soma IC and
Soma Nishi IC, are expected to open in fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2018,
respectively.

As restoration works move steadily forward, the Kanamoto Group
will marshal its collective capabilities and work to further strengthen
its response capacity, in order to respond to rapidly increasing con-
struction equipment rental demand to the fullest extent possible,
while continuing to devote its efforts to early recovery of the dev-
astated region.

FERER

Scheduled opening of

ZRERORERBEL

struction roads and reconstruction support roads

—BA&@& Currently open

——F#H  Project underway
EREEAIC |
= I;va/izumi 175 ERBFE

=FE Ryusendo IC | EaZ={a1/1
2525 |d(@ | Sanriku Coastal Road
JEEIE Taro Kita IC Scheduled to open
 in FY2017
= Length 6km
Miyako

Minami IC E@/ﬁf#ﬁﬂﬁ
aile || 17EEmETE

Yamada IC_| HER14km

Sanriku Coastal Road

Scheduled to open

in FY2017

Length 14km

REERIC | B35
Tono-Sumita IC 18FEREFE
- ER11km
=EFIC

Tono IC Kamaishi-Hanamaki
Road
Scheduled to open
in FY2018
Length 11km

Y
bl i ERE
IO S 17 ERE T E ERSkm
Abukuma IC :
Soma-Fukushima Road

i jnzyi:0z 20 (@8 B Scheduled to open in FY2017
Abukuma Higashi IC | [ESRElar

\
/i

iasmEIC | FEEEe
soma NishillC 1 R Fte TG Aok n =0 Gl
7= I=SIL@ B Soma-Fukushima Road

Soma IC Scheduled to open in FY2018
| Length 6km

ewysnyn4
T &

HAT - BE@EEER (201461283688 R) ZEIC/ER
Source: Prepared based on Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism
materials (as of December 6, 2014)

| < s
L ERREEETOEFETIE T ERERm=EIIOReENTSE
Top: Revetment works at Ishinomaki City, Miyagi Prefecture
Bottom: Elevated land construction work in Minamisanriku, Miyagi Prefecture
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Percentage of net sales by business (consolidated)

201451084

Fiscal 2014 operating results

L>&IVsEE
Rental revenues 87, 1 89

el 29,383

Sales revenues

I A NEET 116.572

Business total

B A / Millions of Yen

Construction Equipment Rental Business

Meet local needs and accomplish equipment rental’s
mission as social infrastructure.

The construction equipment rental business accounts for over 90% of the net sales of the Kanamoto Group.
Through this core business, Kanamoto helps customers rationalize their operations. Beginning with engineering
works and construction, we provide services to address all of the worksite concerns we hear in the field.

A full line-up of approximately 500,000 rental items,
available throughout Japan

Practicing “Rent to Sale” through flexible operating
decisions

Kanamoto owns approximately 460 different models and 500,000
rental items. Naturally, this includes various hand tools and
construction equipment, such as dump trucks and hydraulic
excavators. But Kanamoto also stands prepared with items to
satisfy every demand, from temporary housing materials and
structures to electrical generators. In addition to various mod-
els, we make sure we offer an ample selection of sizes, plus a
broad range of optional items. At Kanamoto, we continually en-
hance our product lineup and provide complete support, and
customers have come to rely on Kanamoto as their one-stop
partner for all their equipment and parts procurement needs.

Creation of a thorough maintenance organization at
every branch

The essence of Kanamoto’s business model is to recover in-
vestment outlays through rental income following the introduc-
tion of equipment, which is ultimately disposed of through sales.
One ongoing theme in the Company’s operations has been to
boost profit margins by easing the depreciation burden and ex-
tending the useable life of assets. For models that enjoy robust
demand in the second-hand market, however, Kanamoto must
temper its response to global market conditions. As a result,
the Company’s operations pivot on maintaining flexible assess-
ments, attuned to circumstances, on whether to hold assets for
the long term or to replace equipment relatively quickly.

From BtoB to BtoC

With approximately 170 offices nationwide, and more than 340
locations for the Kanamoto Group as a whole, Kanamoto is
continuing to add branches while strengthening its alliance
strategy. Ensuring that each base in areas where the Com-
pany continues to expand is staffed with maintenance person-
nel who boast the highest technical skills is a key Kanamoto
standard. Day in and day out, our maintenance employees
conscientiously perform their activities to ensure equipment will
demonstrate its peak operating performance. This thorough
maintenance enhances the asset value of equipment sold in
the used equipment market.

The clearance sale value of our construction equipment is
raised even further by the fact Kanamoto selects construction
equipment that is in use around the world. Of course, one cri-
terion used equipment purchasers will rely on when selecting
products is that the parts and maintenance systems available
in other countries are similar to the networks established in Ja-
pan. In order to meet this requirement, Kanamoto selects the
leading construction equipment manufacturers in Japan. We
will continue to provide thorough maintenance and make strict
rental equipment selections, and build the Kanamoto brand on
both rentals and secondhand equipment.

In cooperation with Komeri Co., Ltd., a major Japanese DIY
company, Kanamoto is also developing its rental business
targeting individual users. We have set up tool rental corners in
seven Komeri Power Store branches, part of the do-it-yourself
store network Komeri is developing, and stocked them with
an ample equipment lineup ranging from tools for professional
use to small construction equipment, to meet the needs of
individual customers, small building contractors and farmers.
Kanamoto is working to increase profit-making opportunities
by expanding its business field from BtoB to BtoC.

Conforming to a range of needs with a full compen-
sation system

Kanamoto has established a compensation system to fully pro-
tect customers against the risks of theft or an accident caused
by its construction equipment and vehicles during the rental
period. Moreover, in recent years, both the type of accidents
that occur and the scope of compensation have grown more
complex, generating increasingly diverse user needs. Kanamo-
to has responded by offering red-carpet service, including the
assignment of inspectors to each region to reflect customer
requests and perform investigations of compensation details.

Kanamoto 2015 | 11 |
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Percentage of net sales by business (consolidated)

.= HEOTER Overview of Operations

2014FE10R83E

Fiscal 2014 operating results

429
8,554

8,983

B7H / Millions of Yen

“Kanamoto’s business” creates earnings
opportunities in many sectors.

Along with construction equipment rentals, Kanamoto is working to broaden earnings opportunities in
various sectors by developing operations such as its businesses related to the Steel Sales Division and
the Company’s information and telecommunications-related division.

Steel Product Sales Business

The steel products sales business was Kanamoto’s core busi-
ness when the Company was established, and can proudly
be called Kanamoto’s starting point. In addition to supplying
general steel products such as steel bar and H-beams, sheet
piles and single tube pipes mainly in Hokkaido, Kanamoto’s
Steel Sales Division handles contracts for various specialized
works, including construction of ALC (autoclave lightweight
concrete) exterior walls or insulation construction works, as
well as the sale and installation of products such as “KT roof
system” insulated waterproof roofing. By selling construction
materials as well as undertaking construction work on consign-
ment, we help customers to minimize complicated procedures
and slash costs.

Since being established the Steel Sales Division has main-
tained a stable business, and today remains one of the leading
suppliers in Hokkaido’s steel products wholesale industry. In
the years ahead, the division will continue to supply the high-
quality steel products essential for engineering works and con-
struction, including infrastructure construction, that support
today’s lifestyles.

Computing Products and Other Businesses

Kanamoto’s Information Products Division has continued to
achieve substantial results. These include being the first to of-
fer for rent in Japan the IBM PC-AT, the most advanced model
of its time and the forerunner for today’s Windows machine
standard, and being the second company in the world - and
the first in Japan - certified by Sun Microsystems as a rental
firm for Sun workstations.

Today Kanamoto continues to provide efficient hardware, as
well as propose a variety of network solutions. The computer
industry experiences remarkable progress in products and
technologies, and Kanamoto continually develops services
from our customers’ point of view to ensure they can use the
most advanced services available from both a hardware and
software perspective.

The Kanamoto Group has been developing its business to dis-
patch engineering-related R&D employees (specified worker
dispatching undertakings) since 2008. Securing engineers in
this specialized field, where knowledge and experience are a
must, is a vital issue because it smoothly reflects customers’
needs. This business comprises highly trained engineers with
the skills to match the demands of many firms.
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Plan of the main venue and facilities for the Tokyo 2020 Games
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Waterfront area development to proceed with
construction of a new stadium

In the run-up to the Tokyo 2020 Games, plans for the construction
of a new stadium and the improvement of existing facilities as well
as the refurbishment of roads, railways and other infrastructure are
being put into action. One development in particular that is set
to be fast-tracked is the so-called Waterfront Area facing Tokyo
Bay. As indicated in the figure below, the Ariake and Tatsumi ar-
eas (Koto Ward, Tokyo) are candidate sites for construction of the
new stadium, while the Olympic Village will be built on city-owned
land in the Harumi district (Chuo Ward). The plan is to remodel the
Olympic Village after the Tokyo 2020 Games and re-use the build-
ings as condominiums. Together with the site of the Tsukiji Market,
which will be relocated in November 2016, development of the
Waterfront Area will continue after the Tokyo 2020 Games as well.
A new National Stadium will be constructed in Shinjuku Ward in
Tokyo to serve as the main Tokyo 2020 Games venue. The plan
calls for the new stadium to be constructed from October 2015 to
March 2019, following demolition of the existing National Stadium.
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Sources and Foundation of Growth

Construction industry activity remains brisk. The pipeline of major projects includes the Tokyo 2020
Olympic and Paralympic Games (the Tokyo 2020 Games), redevelopment in the Tokyo metropolitan
area, the Linear Chuo Shinkansen, and infrastructure upgrades and repairs, and hand in hand with such
projects, the demand for construction equipment rentals is climbing rapidly.

To respond to the fullest extent possible to these vigorous needs, which could be called the “source
of Kanamoto's growth,” the Kanamoto Group is strengthening its sales and marketing capabilities,
pursuing technical innovations, and building strategic business systems. The Group is striving to ensure
that “organization = foundation,” to accurately capture these numerous profit-making opportunities.
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Construction of transportation infrastructure to be
spurred as well

In addition to directly-related building projects such as stadium con-
struction, the Tokyo 2020 Games will also promote upgrade of the
surrounding transportation infrastructure network. East Japan Rail-
way announced in June 2014 it will open a new station between the
Shinagawa and Tamachi Stations on the Yamanote Line and Keihin-
Tohoku Line, to be timed with the opening of the Tokyo 2020 Games.
Similarly, plans to establish a new line linking central Tokyo with the
Tokyo International Airport (Haneda) were also clarified in August
2014. Under this plan, a 6km underground tunnel will be dug from
the airport to the Tokyo Freight Terminal, and three new routes will
be constructed: an East Yamanote Line to Tokyo through Tamachi
using the Oshio Line, a currently unused freight line, a West Yaman-
ote Line extending to Shinjuku and a seaside route to Shin-Kiba
using the Rinkai Line.

The construction plans for the three ring roads encircling central To-
kyo also are attracting attention. One concerns the Tokyo Gaikan
Expressway and will seek completion of the route around 2020. The
expressway is an 85-km road that connects in a loop extending ap-
proximately 15 km from the city center. An extension of the Central
Circular Route also is being planned. This plan will extend the route
to the Waterfront Area, and directly connect the Toranomon district
with Tokyo International Airport (Haneda). The third ring road was
58% complete at the end of April 2013. The government will seek to
increase this to 92% by 2020.
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New Shinkansen Lines and Linear Chuo Shinkansen
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Shinkansen lines and the Linear Chuo Shinkansen route in Japan’s various prefectures
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Hokuriku and Hokkaido Shinkansen lines look to early
openings

The Hokuriku Shinkansen will open between Nagano and Kanaza-
wa in March 2015. In addition, the interval between Kanazawa and
Tsuruga, which currently is scheduled to open in fiscal 2025, will
be opened three years early in fiscal 2022, with the aim of pulling
forward the opening of the section between Kanazawa and Fu-
kui even earlier. For the incomplete interval between Tsuruga and
Osaka, three proposals are being studied: the “Maihara Route” that
will involve construction of a new line between Tsuruga and Mai-
hara and use of the Tokaido Shinkansen tracks from Maihara to
Shin-Osaka, the “Wakasa Route” that will entail construction of a
completely new line over the entire interval from Tsuruga to Osaka
and pass near Obama City, and the “Kosei Route”, which would
use Gauge Change Train operations to enable use of existing tracks
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and use of the existing Kosei Line to Osaka.

The Hokkaido Shinkansen Line between Shin-Aomori and Shin-
Hakodate Hokuto also will open in March 2016. Furthermore, the
government has announced a policy to move forward by five years
opening of the line between the Shin-Hakodate-Hokuto Station
and Sapporo, which currently is set for fiscal 2035, and will seek to
begin operations early along with the Hokuriku Shinkansen.

Linear Chuo Shinkansen finally off the drawing board

More than half a century after the start of research in 1962, another
large project has finally moved off the drawing board. It's the Linear
Chuo Shinkansen, for which JR Tokai will seek to commence regu-
lar operations between Tokyo (Shinagawa) and Nagoya in 2027.
The total tab for construction will be 5,523.5 billion yen. Construc-
tion costs in the Construction Implementation Plan (Phase 1) re-

Linear maglev train running along the test track in Yamanashi Prefecture
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Sources and Foundation of Growth
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Source: Prepared based on materials from the Ministry of Land,
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leased by JR Tokai in August 2014 are set at 4,015.8 billion yen,
more than 70% of the projected outlay.

Of this amount, tunnel costs — that is, tunnel construction costs
— will reach 1,621.9 billion yen, over 40% of the construction bill
(Phase 1). Along the 285.6km stretch between Shinagawa and
Nagoya, tunnel intervals will account for 246.6km or about 86%
of the entire length. This immense tunneling project will be divided
mainly between a mountain tunnel interval piercing Japan’s Central
Alps, and a shield tunnel interval passing deep beneath the cities
where terminal stations, to be constructed underground at Shina-
gawa and in Nagoya, will serve as basing points.

In addition to the tunnels, the Linear Chuo Shinkansen route will
be composed of 23.6km of elevated bridges, 11.3km of regular
bridges, and 4.1km of base course track bed. With plans also call-
ing for the route to be extended from Nagoya to Osaka in 2045,
“linear demand” will continue well into the future.
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Disaster Prevention and Mitigation Measures
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Infrastructure maintenance and repair for national
resilience

Public awareness concerning measures to address Japan’s de-
caying infrastructure has been heightened by incidents such as
the Great East Japan Earthquake and an accident involving the
sudden fall of ceiling plates in an expressway tunnel. East Nippon
Expressway Company (NEXCO) and other expressway operators
have plans to invest several trillion yen over the next 10-15 years to
repair Japan's expressways. Within just a few years, much of the
infrastructure that was built during the concentrated burst of con-
struction from the 1960s to the 1980s, including roads, railways,
bridges, tunnels, dams, harbors and airports, will be 50 years old.
This means Japan is facing a period of intensive renewal from 2010
through 2030. The rate of progress on these infrastructure mainte-
nance projects remains slow, however, and the danger of a serious
accident occurring if maintenance, repairs and upgrades are not
undertaken appropriately in the future has been highlighted.
Measures to address the localized torrential rains that have oc-
curred frequently in recent years have also taken on a new urgen-
cy. While Japanese cities such as Tokyo have underground flood
control reservoirs to contain runoff when precipitation exceeds river
flow capacity, many such facilities were designed on the premise
of 50 milliliter per hour rainfall, and there is a possibility they cannot
handle a localized torrential downpour in excess of 100 milliliters.
Moreover, localized torrential rains in Hiroshima Prefecture in Au-
gust 2014 resulted in a large-scale landslide disaster. Construc-
tion of facilities such as underground reservoirs, revetments, and
sabo erosion dams are essential as countermeasures to cope with
such circumstances. Based on such conditions, the government
has approved the expenditure of an astounding 200 trillion yen for
“national resilience”. The Basic Plan for Extending the Lifespan of
Infrastructure, which incorporates the aim of zero critical infrastruc-
ture accidents attributable to superannuation, is part of this effort
as well, and public-works programs concerning infrastructure
maintenance and repairs are already being implemented in various
regions.
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By 2012 much of Japan’s infrastructure
including the Tokyo Metropolitan Expressway

and many tunnels had been in service for 50
years, and had reached the age when it must
be refurbished or replaced
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Construction of sabo dams (right) and
revetments is essential as a measure against
= landslide disasters (left), which have occurred
il frequently in recent years
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Overseas Business Environment
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Main projects in Hong Kong and ASEAN countries
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@ Peripheral development at Thilawa Special Economic Zone (SEZ)
@ Yangon-Mandalay Railway Improvement Project

@ Hanthawaddy International Airport Project, etc.
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@ Iskandar development

@ Kuala Lumpur-Singapore High Speed Rail project

@ Terengganu State onshore gas terminal construction
@ Penang State gas-fired power plant construction, etc.

2vHEK—IV Singapore

@ Uy RSV AKIRILERF

@ FERT ) —F X BIRE

[ Lifizeithe g

@ KZUK - ELYIIEK

@HVERY - TXARE KL

@ Woodlands large-scale redevelopment 7y L N
@ Marina South dgistrict developmeﬁt © Vv )V T OKERE 5L
@ West district large-scale port construction @ Jakarta Mass Rapid Transit (MRT)
@ Holland Village expansion

@ Kampong Bugis development, etc.

A4 K%7 Indonesia
O JvhIV AT EEE (MRT)
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@ Port of Tanjung Priok improvement and expansion works
@ Jakarta underground flood diversion canal construction, etc.
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Large-scale projects are under construction in Singapore (left) and Macau

Infrastructure construction in ASEAN countries is
proceeding at a furious pace

Infrastructure construction projects are being developed at a furi-
ous pace in Asian countries today against the backdrop of eco-
nomic growth and urbanization.

In Hong Kong, where “10 major infrastructure projects” with a total
budget equivalent to three trilion yen are underway, the govern-
ment is proceeding on large-scale infrastructure development in-
cluding the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link,
the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and development of the old
Kai Tak Airport site, with costs that range between several billion to
more than one hundred billion HK dollars.

In Singapore as well, work is progressing on a large-scale port
construction project to concentrate container terminals in the
western district, in addition to programs such as large-scale re-
development of the North Region and development of the Marina
South district based on the 10-15 year land development basic
plan (Master Plan 2013) announced by Singapore’s Urban Rede-
velopment Authority (URA). Similarly, the plan to extend the urban
mass rapid transit (MRT) system and double the network from its
present length to about 360km also is advancing.

Construction markets in the ASEAN countries remain brisk as
well. These include Indonesia, which will undertake infrastructure
investment of 44 ftrilion yen over a five-year period from 2015
through 2019, Vietnam, which will pursue large-scale infrastruc-
ture development including a North-South Express Railway and
the Haiphong International Gateway Port, Malaysia, which an-
nounced 7,621 new construction projects (3,728.8 billion yen) in
2013, and Myanmar, where peripheral development at the Thilawa
Special Economic Zone (SEZ) including large-scale port improve-
ments and the Yangon-Mandalay Railway Improvement Project
are planned.

Each of these countries is expected to promote infrastructure
investment in the future as well, because such construction is
essential for a country’s continuous economic growth.

& # HongKong

@10k1>757O0I1v+

[RRERREE, BERARE, FNBESIRREEMX, 120 ZEBYBaS.

&S - RIEERERESE 5L

@ 10 major infrastructure projects

Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link, Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, West Kowloon Cultural District, development
of the old Kai Tak Airport site, Hong Kong-Shenzhen Airports Link, etc.

2er  NPFL Vietnam
) Philippines @ it =&k
S @/\/ (T« K—FIVHEHEKE
O /\174VEBRT— Iz HE
OOV VEREE KL
@ North-South Express Railway
@ Hanoi City Urban Railway,
Ho Chi Minh City Urban Railway
@ Haiphong International Gateway Port
- @Long Thanh International Airport, etc.
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.
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SHREENE JETRO) EX A EIT/ERL
Source:
Prepared based on Research Institute of Construction

and Economy (RICE) materials and Japan External
Trade Organization (JETRO) materials
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Technologies that Capitalize on Kanamoto's “Strengths”
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Ground improvement works for projects such as seawalls and highways

Business development that takes advantage of
“technology” to create Kanamoto’s strengths

Actively developing new products that incorporate the latest
technologies is another of Kanamoto’s strong points. One ex-
ample is the “Bridge Dragon,” a highly efficient bridge inspec-
tion vehicle based on Kanamoto’s original design. We've also
introduced a range of construction equipment that is registered
in NETIS*, the New Technology Information System managed
by Japan’s Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tour-
ism. The LED battery floodlight developed by our New Prod-
ucts Office, for example, has already resulted in numerous
orders from general contractors because it helps significantly
reduce power consumption and CO2. Kanamoto also mar-
kets microturbine generators manufactured by the U.S. firm
Capstone Turbine Corporation, which have been delivered to
domestic biomass power generation facilities and are already
producing results. Kanamoto will continue to develop its rental
business in other sectors in the future.

Our capabilities in handling systems and work methods for
the foundation and ground improvement sector are another
Kanamoto advantage. We boast an ample lineup of special
construction equipment for ground improvement, plus teams
of ground improvement specialists at companies within the
Group, enabling us to lend a hand for works at locations such
as petroleum industrial complexes where deep underground
construction work, underwater work and thorough prevention
of ground sinking and subsidence are absolutely essential.

*Database of technical information accumulated in the Ministry of Land,
Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism “System of Technologies Used for Public
Works Etc.”
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Sources and Foundation of Growth

Both in Japan and overseas, the construction pipeline is filled with major projects that are currently under way or scheduled for the
future, creating what can be deemed an extremely positive business environment. The Kanamoto Group will strive to lay a foundation
that enables it to firmly meet this growing demand and fulfill the mission of “rentals” as an important social infrastructure, while
pursuing technologies that make the best use of the Group’s strengths, implementing multiple IT, finance and investment-related
strategies and executing its new long-term vision described at the end of this feature.
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Number of information-aided construction projects by type of works

1,200 WAJI|£A River engineering works
Mg+ A Road engineering works
WZHLET  Paintworks
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Information-aided construction to achieve highly
effective, highly accurate construction

“Information-aided construction” is being promoted by the Ministry
of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism, and expanded use
of this technology is forecast in Japan’s national resilience plan as
well. This new construction method utilizing ICT (Information and
Communication Technology) is being introduced to achieve highly
effective, highly accurate construction by improving the construc-
tion steps that form the construction project process flow, from
study through design and construction to operation and main-
tenance, where adoption of ICT has been slow. Through man-
power savings and productivity enhancements, this approach is
expected to eliminate the worker shortages that are now a serious
problem plaguing the construction industry and have a positive
cost reduction effect. It will also help shorten construction time
and ensure safety, because the finishing stakes, register marks
and other indicator stakes marking off the work area and inspec-
tions performed during the project interval are no longer required.
The number of projects utilizing this technology has risen annually
as well, increasing about 15 times from 75 projects in 2008 to
1,114 projects in 2013. To address this trend, Kanamoto estab-
lished an Information-aided Construction Promotion Section with-
in its Regional Special Procurement Sales Division, to strengthen
marketing of information-aided construction across all of the
Group’s companies.

Furthermore, in addition to having a subsidiary within the group
that possesses certain technical capabilities in information-aided
construction, Kanamoto provides the latest information-aided
construction-related devices and construction equipment in co-
operation with a firm that specializes in measuring instruments.
Kanamoto also is lending its full support to the introduction of
information-aided construction by holding management semi-
nars with trained specialists, for example, and assisting firms in
all phases, from system adoption through operating startup. This
is yet another way in which Kanamoto is demonstrating its “com-
prehensive capabilities.”

1,114

1,000 mzofts  Other
HZOMITEENSTE
UK - BETE
800 |- @smr®

@FER TR
@EE T 61 2
600 Note: Type of works included in Other

e

E+ EA T BRI TR

@ Sabo and coastal works

@ Construction works

@ Bridge substructures
@ Landscaping  Etc.

400 |— P

500 193

Site using information-aided construction technique
promoted by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport
and Tourism

WA EEEE NERICETHE R ) ERE IR

Source: Prepared based on materials from the Ministry of Land,

‘08 ‘09 10 m 12

, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism’s Information-aided Construction
13 Promotion Committee
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IT, Finance and Investment Strategies
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IT governance is essential for the practice of
corporate strategy

In recent years there has been a growing need to provide for
“IT governance.” Described concisely, IT governance refers to
appropriately establishing objectives and strategies when in-
troducing and utilizing IT, measuring and assessing the results
and risks, and establishing mechanisms that will make the
“ideal application of IT” possible. For firms, the determination of
whether IT is being utilized effectively to improve the efficiency
of operations and achieve strategic objectives is enormously
important. It's thought that in order to use IT more effective-
ly, activities such as system operation and risk management
should not be left to the system department, but should be
addressed as company-wide issues.

Enhancement of information systems to boost
operating efficiency

Kanamoto was an industry pioneer in creating an online net-
work in 1985 linking all its branches. In 2004, we completed
the migration of all mission-critical systems from a mainframe
to an open system and realized greater efficiency in all of our
internal operations, from managing our rental asset inventory
to performing maintenance and regular inspections, account-
ing treatment and credit management, plus the selection of
models for next-period introduction.

Providing “the right equipment” at “the right time” and in “the
right quantity” can be said to be the foundation of equipment
rentals, and Kanamoto’s online system makes it possible. Not
only does our online system ensure smooth equipment deliv-
ery and pickup, it contributes significantly to the formation of a
product lineup and rental fleet that meets customers’ needs.
Kanamoto will continue its efforts to develop “IT governance,”
and work to further increase the efficiency of internal opera-
tions while aggressively pursuing the development of propri-
etary systems in the future.

ATEFDEBRVRATLEUNIXET Y b 74— LELTEWebN—Z DA —
TUVAT LERRA

Kanamoto has adopted a web-based open system built on a UNIX
platform for its mission-critical systems
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EBITDA (f —E b7 — I —) D#ERE GER)
Change in EBITDA (Consolidated)
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45,000
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0
12 13 14
EBITDA=E %7128 + s M 2172
EBITDA = Operating income + depreciation and amortization expense
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Sources and Foundation of Growth

Improving profit margins through optimized asset
management

Kanamoto has long considered its construction equipment
management system and improvements in operating efficiency
to be the wellspring of the Kanamoto Group’s earnings. The
Company also is thoroughly analyzing and improving its cur-
rent business processes. Through measures such as manag-
ing earnings through the disposal of under-utilized assets, and
strengthening competitiveness by optimizing the mix of models
and ages in the equipment portfolio, the Company is working to
maximize earnings and improve operating profit margins during
rental equipment operating periods.

A unique financial strategy corresponding to the
characteristics of a stock business

Because equipment rental is a stock-based business, Kana-
moto’s ratio of interest-bearing debt is higher than in other in-
dustries. As a financial strategy to service this debt, Kanamoto is
working to increase shareholders’ equity, and reducing interest-
bearing debt and streamlining its balance sheet to limit capital
asset investment to within the scope of annual cash flow.

A future-oriented investment strategy to secure the
source of Kanamoto’s earnings

Kanamoto makes vigorous capital investments annually, which
result in an amortization burden corresponding to this volume
of assets. Equipment rental, however, is a business character-
ized by the ability to receive a gain from the sale of used equip-
ment after rental earnings have been ensured. In other words,
the depreciation expenses incurred during each fiscal year be-
come the source of future earnings. For this reason, Kanamoto
considers its most important management indicators to be
EBITDA* (operating income + depreciation and amortization
expense + lease fee payments + installment payment charges
+ purchase payments for small-scale construction equipment
and inexpensive rental assets) and ROI (return on investment),
rather than current year operating results, and has always
worked to achieve growth in these indicators.

EBITDA+ (A —EY FTr—I— 75 R) DHEFE GEEE)
Change in EBITDA* (Consolidated)

B7AM/Millions of Yen
45,000

36,000

27,000

18,000

9,000

0 12 13 14
EBITDA* = EBITDA+XIAU— XK+ BB F Bk +/ | ERE 2
EBITDA* = EBITDA + lease fee payments + installment payment charges + purchase
payments for small-scale construction equipment and inexpensive rental
assets costing less than ¥200 thousand and depreciated within one year
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Sources and Foundation of Growth

New Long-term Vision “BULL55”
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To be a truly strong firm - Kanamoto adopts its new
long-term vision “BULL55”

In September 2014, the Kanamoto Group announced its new
long-term vision ahead of the 50th anniversary of the Com-
pany’s establishment, a major milestone. It named its vision
“BULLS55” - Build Up a Legendary Leading company plan for
the 55th. The vision takes a future perspective, positioning
2019 (Kanamoto’s 55th Business Period) as a target year to
serve as a guidepost for establishing the Kanamoto brand. The
profile the Kanamoto Group will seek to realize for the future is
that of a “truly strong firm” — a company capable of achieving
sustainable growth for the next 50 years and welcoming the
100th anniversary of Kanamoto’s founding.

Kanamoto has prepared a phased execution plan that shows
the way to this new long-term vision. It has formulated a Medi-
um-term Management Plan (BULL53) to cover the initial phase
from 2015 (51st Business Period) to 2017 (53rd Business Pe-
riod). As outlined in this feature, construction equipment rental
demand is projected to become increasingly vigorous in the
future, both in Japan and overseas. The Kanamoto Group will
respond to this growing demand to the maximum extent pos-
sible, and fulfill the ever-more important “role of rentals,” while
achieving the key BULL53 policies described below.

chEB4R S SHE [BULLS3] DB

Priority policies under Kanamoto’s Medium-term Management Plan “BULL 53"
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© Expansion of domestic base of operations

In addition to focusing on the Tokyo metropolitan area where
much of Japan’s public and private sector demand is concentrated,
undertake branch development, pursue M&A and remain on a
growth track in areas west of the Kanto Region, while maintaining
net sales in the Hokkaido and Tohoku regions.

© Overseas development

Maintain or expand Kanamoto's existing subsidiaries in Shanghai,
Hong Kong, and Singapore, further expand overseas operations in
the rapidly developing ASEAN countries and take steps to develop
business operations in countries such as Indonesia, Thailand,
Malaysia, Vietnam, Myanmar and Cambodia where demand is
anticipated for specialized equipment for engineering works such
as ground improvement and the shield tunneling method, sectors
in which the Kanamoto Group possesses unique expertise.

© Optimization of internal operational processes

Kanamoto considers its construction equipment management system
and improvements in operating efficiency to be the wellspring of
the Kanamoto Group's earnings, and seeks to reduce costs and
equipment downtime and turnaround through operational process
enhancements based on stronger control over rental unit prices and
discounts and the “pursuit of operational process improvements.”
Kanamoto will also further boost the efficiency of operations through
the expansion of its business unit support functions and systems
integration with related Group companies.
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Practice CSR activities as the core of operations.
Strive to improve trust and corporate value as a company responsible for the future.
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Overview of CSR at Kanamoto

Kanamoto conducts its business activities with the goal of being a “firm trusted by society and entrusted
with society’s future.” Currently these business activities are being accomplished with the support of many
stakeholders, beginning with our shareholders and investors but also encompassing groups as diverse as
our customers, employees and local communities, while showing growth overseas. We believe that building
a deep relationship of trust with stakeholders, supported by proper corporate activities, is indispensable for
accomplishing our mission and achieving sustainable growth. Kanamoto has positioned “CSR (Corporate
Social Responsibility)” at the heart of its corporate management and is committed to its practice.

Working to further improve corporate value under the simple yet strong philosophy
“contribute to society”

The foundation for a relationship of trust with stakeholders is formed by the fundamental corporate activities
demanded by society, including compliance, corporate governance and disclosure. For Kanamoto, these are
nothing new. That’s because our business operations have always assumed “contributing to society through
equitable and appropriate corporate activities” as a starting point, and we have always conducted our busi-
ness with this firmly in mind. Our approach to environmental protection has been the same, and we have
always promoted this policy proactively through actions such as the early introduction of equipment models
that meet anti-pollution statutes.

Together with the creation of earnings, which is our intrinsic purpose as a firm, we will continue devoting our-
selves to fulfilling our social responsibilities and further increasing our corporate value in the future, through
systematic CSR activities at every company of the Kanamoto Group.
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The level of awareness of each and every employee
increases a firm’s “social value”.
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Actively implementing legal compliance training activities
with the goal of spreading a compliance outlook

Establishing a compliance organization and working incessant-
ly to strengthen employee training and compliance systems are
absolute prerequisites for fulfilling a firm’s social responsibilities.
Kanamoto has prepared ethics rules to serve as a standard
concerning compliance, and taken steps to strengthen ob-
servance of laws and ethics regulations throughout the entire
organization, centered on a Compliance Committee chaired
by Kanamoto’s President and CEO. The Company works to
ensure every individual is thoroughly familiar with these guide-
lines, and manages its organization in accordance with these
materials. Efforts include preparing a handbook detailing the
Company’s employee conduct standards, which we distribute
to every employee, and creating an environment where em-
ployees can access compliance information easily using Kana-
moto’s Intranet.

We also have actively undertaken measures to strengthen our
compliance organization, including the creation of an informa-
tion desk within the Company to receive consultations and re-
ports concerning violations of the law or employee misconduct.

Strengthening Kanamoto’s corporate governance
system to improve sound management

Kanamoto recognizes that corporate governance is the foun-
dation for increasing the value of Kanamoto’s operations to so-
ciety, and is working aggressively to improve the efficiency and
soundness of its management.

For management decision-making, we further increased man-
agement transparency by introducing the outside director sys-
tem, and clarified supervisory authority and responsibilities for
the execution of Company activities through the introduction of
a corporate officer system. In addition, Kanamoto shortened
the term of office for directors from two years to one year,
creating a more flexible management organization. To audit
its management activities, the Company has adopted an Au-
dit Committee system. The Audit Committee is composed of
six members (four of whom are outside auditors). This com-
mittee fulfills an important role in strengthening Kanamoto’s
corporate governance organization. It regularly participates in
meetings of the Board of Directors, gathers information as a
liaison between the Auditing Office and the outside auditing
firm, conducts internal audits on all aspects of the Company’s
businesses, and audits the legality and appropriateness of di-
rectors’ duties throughout the Group.
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Kanamoto’s corporate governance organization
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Enhancement and operation of a company-wide
internal control system

To respond appropriately and implement measures to prevent a
recurrence if unforeseen circumstances that will have a serious ef-
fect on Company operations have occurred or might occur, the
Company has prepared an Emergency Response Manual (Con-
tingency Plan). One measure for further clarifying these activities
is Kanamoto’s “internal controls reporting system,” which all of the
Company’s employees have been united in supporting since the
system was placed into full-scale operation.

To ensure the effectiveness of Kanamoto’s company-wide internal
controls and each activity process, during the Business Period
ended October 2014, guidance and training programs were con-
ducted by the Internal Control and Auditing Office at 53 offices,
and internal controls similar to Kanamoto’s were also established
and put into operation at Kanamoto Group companies. We will
respond resolutely at every company when applying the internal
control audit report system in the future.

MBI EEEICKLDIES - HE T O T LDOKF

Instruction and training program conducted by the Internal Control and Auditing Office
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Disclosure that is fair, highly transparent, and timely.
All three conditions must be met if stakeholders are to
evaluate Kanamoto properly.
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Enhance fair and speedy disclosure and IR activities

Kanamoto has always practiced fair, highly transparent and
prompt information disclosure. To release information on a time-
ly basis, Kanamoto posts information on the Tokyo Stock Ex-
change TDnet system, while also reporting it promptly on Kana-
moto’s website, where English translations of the documents
disclosing the information are also made available. All materials
providing information about the Company and the Kanamoto
Group, including videos of the Company’s financial statement
briefings and briefing materials distributed to participants, the
Kanamoto Examiner issued quarterly to shareholders, and the
Annual Report, can be viewed on the Company’s website.
Kanamoto also considers direct conversations with its stake-
holders to be an important aspect of its disclosure efforts. Kana-
moto actively exhibits at IR events, including the Tokyo Stock Ex-
change IR Fair for individual investors, Sapporo Stock Exchange
individual investor briefing meetings and the Nikkei IR Fair for
individual investors, and holds company briefings throughout
Japan each year. Kanamoto also holds quarterly briefings with
securities analysts and domestic institutional investors, and de-
votes efforts to implementing IR activities overseas.

Bolster proper control and security of personal information

Kanamoto handles a vast amount of personal information per-
taining to clients, shareholders and investors and other stake-
holders. Accordingly, the Company formulated a Privacy Policy
(Personal Information Protection Policy) to ensure appropriate
management of this data. We also have a reliable system in
place for responses and countermeasures in the event per-
sonal data is leaked outside the Company.

One example of Kanamoto’s commitment to personal data
protection is its use of the latest encryption technologies to
strengthen Internet security and protect information sent to in-
dividuals making inquiries via the Company’s website.

BEREF 1) T4 VAT LERIELTOVSHEIRT A b

Kanamoto employs a robust information security system for its IR website
https://www.kanamoto.ne.jp
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Kanamoto encourages its employees to foster and make
use of their unique personalities and capabilities to the

greatest extent possible. Because our “human resources”
are the very driver of sustainable growth.

REFEFFIDEILICHIFEVHH;

Measures to upgrade safety and health systems
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One effort Kanamoto has strengthened is safety training, and
we have created a system for preventing worker accidents that
is spearheaded by the Safety and Health Office, which reports
to the company president. This body regularly implements in-
house training courses and audits, and works to raise safety
and health awareness, and during the Business Period ended
October 2014 covered all of Kanamoto's offices in combination
with the safety patrols operated by the safety and health work-
ing groups at 79 offices.

These activities to strengthen Kanamoto’s safety and health
systems and eliminate accidents have proven successful, and
as a result, the number of branches that have achieved a zero
accident rate for a continuous period of at least three years
has increased to 126 branches. The best record is held by 22
branches that have not suffered any accidents for a period of
at least 20 years.

Emphasizing personnel training for Kanamoto’s future

Kanamoto considers well-trained personnel who possess high-
level knowledge and skills to be the force driving sustained
growth. Kanamoto therefore has created an organization that
encourages and nurtures the capabilities of each employee to
the maximum extent, by implementing personnel training and
development programs attuned to individuals with manage-
ment duties and those responsible for maintenance and repairs.
Given the need for employees to have numerous qualifications
for technical work and maintenance and repairs in particular,
Kanamoto works diligently to train individuals engaged in these
areas. In addition to providing in-house maintenance and repair
training, Kanamoto has expanded its training system to support
the acquisition of maintenance technology through participation
in manufacturer-sponsored maintenance and repair training,
and encourages employees to obtain advanced qualifications.

Number of Repair Qualified Technicians and Operation Qualified Technicians (As of February 2015)

Bigk A#
Qualification Number of individuals
B AR Ae T (R Construction Equipment Repair Technician (Expert) 9
ERE MR AR (14R) Construction Equipment Repair Technician (First Class) 186
% - > EEEWEGREEL (2R Construction Equipment Repair Technician (Second Class) 398
% § g‘. AT R E R T Portable Generator Repair Technician 391 HREEHHMED IR F
g 20 AnEEfit Automobile Repair Technician 435 In-house maintenance and repair course
B g' % HABERRE Gas Welding Technician 617
% @ i BHBRRIEEEEE Organic Solvent Work Manager 240
R BIREEE Hazardous Materials Handling Manager 319
ikalsReEa Vocational Training Instructor 20
] HEREREINEETEE Vehicle-type Construction Equipment Operator 2,822
& & 3 BERIL — 2 BE5E Mobile Crane Operator 1,649
g % 'g" KB (4% SRiF Large-scale Equipment (Special) Operating License 425
iﬁﬁ g: g EHNTFRREE Sling Crane Technician 726
B 3 S TA—UUTNERE Forklift Operator 508
2 AN O—AHEEGRE Shovel Loader Operator 20

KEREBHIIENATY Note: Number of qualifications held is total man-qualifications.
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Kanamoto will continue implementing effective environmental
conservation activities for our biggest stakeholder - the Earth.
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“Equipment rentals” are an environmentally-
conscious business

Rental is a service that enables customers to use equipment
through “time sharing.” So we might say rentals are an environ-
mentally-friendly business, because the more rentals are used,
the more effective the use of a resource. Consequently, rental
equipment is linked to energy savings and resource conserva-
tion by society, and can be viewed as one solution to environ-
mental problems.

As described below, Kanamoto strives to maintain an ample
inventory of environment-friendly construction equipment. Us-
ing Kanamoto, in other words, might be called an effective en-
vironmental protection measure.

To help more people gain better insight into these environmen-
tal efforts by the Company and see how Kanamoto’s business-
es are environmentally friendly, Kanamoto participates actively
in various environmental events throughout Japan with envi-
ronmental action and ecology themes.

Helping to preserve the environment while meeting
customers’ needs. That’s Kanamoto’s green activity.

At Kanamoto, we view consideration of the global environment
as an important obligation for fulfilling our social responsibilities
as a corporation. For many years, we have been implementing a
systematic shift of rental assets to models that clear anti-pollution
statutes for gas, noise and other emissions. As of 2014, 99% of
the Company’s rental construction equipment portfolio consists
of the latest environmentally-friendly models that clear anti-pollu-
tion regulations.

Kanamoto will fulfill its responsibility to protect the environment
even as we meet user needs. This is just one part of Kanamoto’s
green actions. In the years ahead, Kanamoto will actively con-
tinue to upgrade its inventory to equipment that utilizes “green
technologies.”

Aggressive introduction of fuel-efficient, low-emission
vehicles, even for corporate automobiles

At Kanamoto we have actively introduced automobiles certified
as fuel-efficient, low-emission vehicles for the Company’s own
fleet, in addition to our inventory of rental construction equipment.
Kanamoto selected hybrid automobiles as its corporate vehicles
soon after the start of mass production in 1998. Since then we
have continued to upgrade our fleet to these and other fuel-effi-
cient, low-emission vehicles.
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Example of environment-friendly equipment introduced by Kanamoto
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Hybrid trucks
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Super-low noise construction equipment and models
that comply with Tier Ill emissions regulations
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EXEEE

Electric vehicle

LED/Ny 7 — &5t
LED battery floodlight

RIEANY MEBL. REICHIT2HSELD
W EHERN. BERIFRELSE 1352014
Kanamoto exhibits at environmental events
to explain the Company’s efforts for the
environment. This photograph shows Kanamoto’
s booth at Kankyo Hiroba Sapporo 2014.
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Collaboration with leading local firms in every region of Japan
to create synergies and enable the highest quality service.

ERTORL R

Branch strategy in Japan
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F1e. TWHI7EA D Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S)
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Building construction site in
Wauxi, Jiangsu Province, China

Kanamoto’s fundamental branch strategy is to develop bases
by emphasizing demand-based needs, including large-scale
projects in various regions, while positioning branch develop-
ment in the Tokyo Metropolitan Area, where both public and
private sector demand is concentrated, and in other major
urban centers where there remains room for growth, at the
center of its expansion strategy. Kanamoto will further build its
enhanced branch network by continuing to develop branches
whose future effectiveness can be ascertained and pursuing
a strategy of friendly business alliances and M&A with leading
regional firms.

Overseas branch formation

To serve the vigorous local demand driven by infrastructure
construction in China, which is being undertaken at a rapid
pace, we are not only developing bases but also expanding our
construction equipment maintenance and rental locations. A
number of large-scale infrastructure construction project plans
are also moving forward in Hong Kong, and when efforts such
as our successful indirect entry to these large-scale projects
through KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD. is taken into account, the
development of Kanamoto’s business in China has accelerated.
In Singapore where we have established Kanamoto & JP Nel-
son Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd., an overseas affiliate, a succession
of large-scale projects including subways and expressways has
been ordered in that country, and we anticipate demand for
specialized equipment for engineering works such as ground
improvement and the shield tunneling method, sectors in which
the Kanamoto Group possesses unique expertise.

This effort to expand our overseas operations centered on the
giant market in China and the remarkably developing ASEAN
countries is one of the Kanamoto Group’s most important mea-
sures. Kanamoto will continue to lay a solid foundation for its
push into overseas markets in the future.

. 1. L]
MGM~T AA (K7 )L) DiERIRS  Construction site of the MGM Macau (hotel)
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Kanamoto and the Group companies’ operating branches in Japan (as of October 31, 2014)

EiE TR

JEEfET R

As = ~ B HE O £
Kanameto Can L. Consolidated Nowconsoiidated 7,7 I ZCIRTEEE L
itiB®  Hokkaido 65 19 0 5 89
% Jt  Tohoku 51 9 4 5 69
B = Kanto 28 24 1 6 59
S & # Chubu 17 9 0 10 36
% 2 F ® Knk 5 14 0 9 28
‘é)"- F EH Chugoku 2 2 0 0 4
E  Shikoku 1 1 0 0 2
I Kyushu 0 32 1 2 35
LI | Okinawa 0 0 0 15 15
¥ 22 F E  China 0 7 2 0 9
58S vurk- Singapore 0 0 1 0 1
A &t Total 169 117 9 52 347

NFENPSA4T7VAY)V—T Kanamoto Alliance Group

NN L\ M KRR TS D Ees RFIEMAART - lcanamoto & JPNelsen  Kanamoto & JP Nelson
“hblh I Assist Co., Ltd. oo RIFILAEE Toyo Industry Co., Ltd. ® EQUIPMENT (S PTE. LTD.  Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd.
- BRathFTvy dF A MEREH #AsH HASHBEHV VY VIR
KANATcLH Kanatech Co., Ltd. uUnETE .« ....‘-... ALY &YJ R AsahiRentax Co., Ltd.
st . . EESMRERTEERAT Bt WA ASES
kanamoto mertyy=rls Qe fa i Shanghal Jinheyuan MOTIVREAGERS  <omatsu Doboku
ENGINEERING éaﬂal_r?é)to Engineering Y&\ JINHEYUAN EngiﬂﬁgringConstruction Tsusyo Co., Ltd
0., . 0., T
‘ KANK’ [ZSaw=awabZ kﬁf KRAARMKGTO—T2/ om\vu I HRARHILTTSA
Kanki Corporation et KGIDO—52.) KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. PPly Comsupply Co., Ltd.
EATEN R EERAR 4 : B TR
@ P BRI TUNGEREE kgm ! 2
IAmsAu nmEE Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd. |shodshal| | GET EAUMIG B IRAS %/Ig%?]igr:]ea;yKC%,. Ltd. % SBG/ajﬁIDKAl KOGYO
@ B H SRR A (EB)ERAT % ETERET BTER#E THR 24t
DauchldKlkalsangyo A (BB HEAT KANAMOTO (HK) Machida Kikou Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.

CO., LTD.

NFERTPSATVRIN—-TDERUISEAII7HA. BALEDEDHE3478=

The Kanamoto alliance group comprises 347 branches and offices,
including 10 offices overseas and 337 branches and offices throughout Japan

& kanamoto ALLIANCE GROUP
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Kanamoto’s branch network continues to grow.
The Company is expanding and enlarging its
base of operations domestically and overseas.

(2014%£10A%7E) (As of October 2014)

EA - ;89 1—Y— Domestic and overseas customers

R EEE EREEEE - ZOM FO
Construction-related Construction equipment
businesses rental and other businesses

(#%) 7> AN Assist Co., Ltd. —}

(#) AF+Fv% Kanatech Co., Ltd.
#) Ho+ Kanki Corporation
(%) 7LMEEE  Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd.

FE—HEMESR (F)
Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd.

HETZE (M%) Toyo Industry Co., Ltd.
dF4h(#)  Unite Co., Ltd.
LESMRESRTREARAT

Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering
Construction Co., Ltd.

#KG7O—745/
KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd.

L rsmanmanaman
Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd.
K (F5) ARAF
KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD.

Other businesses

=P HHFENIII=TULS

Kanamoto Engineering Co., Ltd.

@ wan T

kcanamoto co., Itd.

Kanamoto & JP Nelson
Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd.

()AL >RV A ‘

Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd.

T A% Suppliers

CE1) IFEFEFRUROBESAISHL THFNETERAL THVEEA. (Note 1) There are no non-consolidated subsidiaries or affiliated companies to which equity method accounting
GE2) ~HLYRIL - Y—EADIRE. RRORFERLET. 's applied.

(Note 2) Arrows (—) indicate the provision of rental services and sales of products.

(Note 3) Consolidated subsidiaries indicated in blue, non-consolidated subsidiaries indicated in red, affiliated
company indicated in green.

(X 3) FRIE/RTFRI. KBIIEEFTRE. REIPERMERLET,
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! Assist Co., Ltd. (10 branches)
~ Engaged in the rental and sale of furniture, fixtures
and safety products.

BASHHFELIVVZTIVS GHLR)
BTREMEDRE BEAMIKES) ZREHL
TWET,

- Kanamoto Engineering Co., Ltd.

(3 branches)

Engaged in the dispatch of engineering-related
R&D employees (specified worker dispatching
undertakings).

| HASHAMRE (195L:7)
EREHE TN T BRB/MADOL > 2L - 5T
EEELTVET.,

I Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd.

(19 branches)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construc-
tion equipment, with a primary emphasis on
foundation equipment.

RETEHSH GHR)
=V R TEBSEDE DR DL > 2 - BRFeE
BRLTWET,

Toyo Industry Co., Ltd. (3 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of shield tunn-
eling method-related peripheral equipment.

LESMERRTIREFRLATF (7THR)
PEARSNEEEHICBVWTESREHOL V2
V- B, EREMOBMHAZEZRHALTVEY,

Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering
Construction Co., Ltd. (7 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of constructi-
- on equipment and the import and export of
. construction materials in Shanghai, People’s
Republic of China.

LiBAENHRERERAT (1#1S)
PEARENEDBEBICBV TRERSRFEPHTL
SREREROL 2L, Rt - HEERBALTVET,

Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd.
(1 branch)
Engaged in development of a construction equipment
rental business and construction equipment and
construction materials import and export business in
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China.

Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd.
(1#05)
IUAR—IVHRBEICE VT EARRHREROL >
)V - BgFE. AV YIVTA T " TOTVET,

i Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S)
PTE. Ltd. (1 branch)
Engaged in the rental and sale of specialized
engineering works equipment and consulting in
the Republic of Singapore.

#RathFTvo (138k=)
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e
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.
1"““ Kanatech Co., Ltd. (13 branches)

Engaged in the design and sale of modular
housing units for temporary use.

HRaitho+ (9Hs)
| EREHOLVARIL - REEERELTVET,

Kanki Corporation (9 branches)
B Engaged in the rental and sale of construction
equipment.

S—RmMERGN ST (11HL2)
BEREHMOL >RV - RFEEERLTVET,

Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd.
(11 branches)

Engaged in the rental and sale of construction
equipment.

| AT MEREEH (4280)
EEEEOL V2L - iRFE. BT EETZERH
LTWET,

Unite Co., Ltd. (42 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of road constr-
uction equipment and road works construc-
tion.

#RakeT7O—7/ (2#L5)

HRWRE TELMTEEMRERLICH AN
DEHEMOL > 20 - RETEERFEZERLT
WEY,

KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. (2 branches)
Developing a business in the rental and design,
manufacture and sale of specialized equipment
used for projects such as ground improvement work
and the construction of underground structures.

&% (F8) AR2E (1#=)
PEARANEESEFIITRRICE N CEKL > 2
b, B - REREMOBHAREZRRALCVET,

KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD. (1 branch)
Engaged in development of a construction equipment
rental business and construction equipment and
construction materials import and export business in
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in the
People’s Republic of China.

HASHBWAL V29 (4HLR)
fHEfER - RRAKSENL V2L - RFEREREL
TVET,

. Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd. (4 branches)
Engaged in the rental and sale of furniture, fixtures
and safety products.
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ltems in black are business development Items in Color are financial information
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Kanamoto Shoten Co., Ltd. established (Reorganization in Muroran,
Hokkaido)

Zenchu Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director,
and Taichu Kanamoto appointed Executive Director

Began development of sales branch network. Tomakomai Sub-
branch (now the Tomakomai Branch) established

Company name changed to Kanamoto Co., Ltd.

Former headquarters building (Muroran) completed

Advanced into Aomori Prefecture and established the Hachinohe
Branch (now the Hachinohe Equipment Repair Center), Kanamoto's
first branch outside Hokkaido

Implemented issuance of new shares by third party allocation;
Orient Lease (now ORIX Corporation) and The Hokkaido Takushoku
Bank take capital participations

Taichu Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director

Established Chiba Branch (now the Sodegaura Branch) as
Kanamoto’s first foothold in the Kanto Region

Launched Computer and Peripheral Equipment Division (Tomakomai,
Hokkaido)

Relocated the Computer and Peripheral Equipment Division (Bunkyo
Ward, Tokyo)

Established the Construction Equipment Rental Division Tokyo
Office (Bunkyo Ward, Tokyo)

Completed online computer system network linking all branches

Established Kanatech Co., Ltd.

Branches located in all regions of Hokkaido

Listed stock on the Sapporo Securities Exchange

Issued Swiss franc-denominated warrants (SFr60 million)

Established Mikawa Branch as Kanamoto’s first foothold in the
Tokai Region

Began conducting overseas IR briefings

Established Osaka Branch (now the Osaka Higashi Branch) as
Kanamoto's first foothold in the Kinki Region

Issued Swiss franc-denominated convertible bonds (SFr100 million)

Designated as a loan transaction stock for the Sapporo Stock
Exchange

Listed stock on the Second Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Relocated head office functions to Sapporo, Chuo Ward

Issued first unsecured convertible bonds (¥10 billion)

Designated as a stock for margin trading on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange

Issued Eurodollar-denominated straight corporate bonds
(US$42million)

Introduced stock option program

Stock elevated to the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Kanchu Kanamoto appointed President and Representative Director,
and Taichu Kanamoto appointed Chairman of the Board and
Representative Director

Honored by the Tokyo Stock Exchange with the Commendation Award
for Listed Companies, for more than five consecutive years of annual
dividend increases following listing on the Exchange

Established SRG Kanamoto Co., Ltd

Issued Alpine-yen denominated ¥5 billion zero-coupon bond
(Switzerland)

Completed construction on the Kanamoto Hamamatsucho K
Building

Concluded a mutual rental alliance between Komatsu and the
Kanamoto Group
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Concluded alliance with Machida Kikou Co., Ltd

Concluded alliance with Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd

Established Kanamoto Shikoku Co., Ltd. with Tadano Ltd.

Converted Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd. into a subsidiary

Established the Haneda Branch as Kanamoto's first branch in Tokyo

Completed absorption-type merger of Taniguchi Co., Ltd.

Converted Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd. into a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary

Kanamoto honored with the IR Excellent Firm Award from the Japan
Association for Individual Investors (JAIl) (fourth company to receive
the award)

Converted Kanamoto Shikoku Co., Ltd. into a wholly-owned subsid-
iary

Received assignment of construction equipment rental business
operating rights from Kanaya Lease Co., Ltd.

Succeeded to the construction equipment rental business of Na-
kano Motors

Converted Kanki Corporation into a subsidiary

Converted Flowtechno Corporation into a subsidiary

Established Shanghai Jinheyuan Equipment Rental Co., Ltd.
(Shanghai, China) to manage Kanamoto’s first foray into a foreign
market

Received assignment of construction equipment rental assets and
goodwill from to Ogasawara Co., Ltd.

Converted Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd. into a subsidiary

Converted Assist Co., Ltd. into a wholly-owned subsidiary

Shanghai Jinheyuan Equipment Rental Co., Ltd. signed an alliance
agreement with Shanghai Mechanized Construction Co., Ltd.

Introduced special benefits plan for shareholders

Established Kanamoto Engineering Co., Ltd.

Converted SJ Rental, Inc. (Territory of Guam, USA) into a subsidiary

Converted Kyokuto Lease Co., Ltd. into a subsidiary

Converted Toyo Industry Co., Ltd. into a subsidiary

Converted KG Machinery Co., Ltd. into a subsidiary

Established Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering Construction Co., Ltd.

Converted Narasaki Lease Co., Ltd., Tokyo Narasaki Rental Co.,
Ltd., Akita Narasaki Rental Co., Ltd. and Aomori Narasaki Rental
Co., Ltd. into subsidiaries

Established KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD. (Hong Kong Special Admin-
istrative Region)

Completed absorption-type merger of Kyokuto Lease Co., Ltd.

Completed absorption-type merger of Narasaki Lease Co., Ltd. and
Aomori Narasaki Rental Co., Ltd

Established Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd. in Sin-
gapore through a joint venture with a local firm

Initiated absorption-type merger with SRG Kanamoto Co., Ltd.

Converted Unite Co., Ltd. into a subsidiary

KG Machinery Co., Ltd. and Flowtechno Corporation merged and
changed their name to KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd.

Increased capital through public offering (2.8 million shares)

Increased capital by way of third-party allotment (420,000 shares)

Changed stock trading unit size from 1,000 shares to 100 shares

Established Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd. in Shanghai, PRC as an
overseas affiliate of KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd., a Kanamoto subsidiary

Acquired stock of Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd.

50th anniversary of Kanamoto's establishment
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(20145108318%R1E) (As of October 31, 2014)
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(2014118183 1E) (As of November 1, 2014)
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1,255(&558 A (2014E1085A)

EEREEH
2,339% (1R&. IB5t. Bbrit 8% RR<)

Company Name

lkcanamoto co., Itd.

Head Office
1-19, Odori Higashi 3-chome Chuo-ku,
Sapporo, Hokkaido 060-0041 Japan

Business Coordination Headquarters
1-7-7, Shiba Daimon, Minato-ku, Tokyo
105-0012 Japan

Established
October 28, 1964

Capitalization
¥13,652 million (Paid-in capital)

Listing Exchanges
Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section
Sapporo Stock Exchange

Stock Code
9678

Common Shares Issued and Outstanding
36,092 thousand

Consolidated Net Sales
¥125,555 million
(Fiscal year ended October 31, 2014)

Number of Consolidated Employees
2,339 (Excluding directors and temporary
or part-time workers)
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ATELFvERIVFA R

MR EHILBERTT
RRBLABAKRERA ST
HESAALFIRTT

ARSIt

Principal Businesses

Rental of construction equipment

Sale of steel products

Rental of engineering workstations and
computer peripherals

Primary Lenders

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

The Hokkaido Bank, Ltd.

North Pacific Bank, Ltd.

The 77 Bank, Ltd.

JA HOKKAIDO SHINREN

The Norinchukin Bank

The Daishi Bank, Ltd.

The Akita Bank Co., Ltd.

Others

Principal Shareholders

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
ORIX Corporation

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
Komatsu Ltd.

Kanamoto Capital Company

The Hokkaido Bank, Ltd.

Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

North Pacific Bank, LTD.
TSUKISHIMA KIKAI CO., LTD.

EEW515% (505IE)
BRARHT7FO—KRL—>a>
W v BBIERIET
FEREEERIST
FPEREEBEKRARHT

MRS AMAE
EEERHAAH

S HIIRERER
FraES—Iv I\ VR R
AR VERRGEHE R
mFERsiat
BHETEMNASHT
AKERGI AT
REERKN AT

MRS ITHE
MR 2/

MR BRI
7YA—HAEH
REERTEMARMT
FHEZSR%AST

P RIR a1t
PRANEEMA Rt
BHEEHEKART
HREHABT >

Bl 5wy o

IR TRGA A
=HinESEH
ZEELTONIVY - NRGHERH
VUOR—EEMGART ED

Primary Customers (Alphabetic order)
Aichi Corporation

Caterpillar Japan Ltd.

Denyo Co., Ltd.

Fudo Tetra Corporation

HANWA CO., LTD.

Hino Motors, Ltd.

HOKUETSU INDUSTRIES CO., LTD.
Isuzu Motors Limited

ITOCHU CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY CO., LTD.
ITOCHU Corporation

Kajima Corporation

KATO CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.

Komatsu Construction Equipment

Sale and Service Japan Ltd.

MAEDA CORPORATION

Mitsubishi Fuso Truck and Bus Corporation
MITSUI & CO., LTD

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.
OBAYASHI CORPORATION
PENTA-OCEAN CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.
SAKAI HEAVY INDUSTRIES, LTD.
SHIMIZU CORPORATION

TADANO LTD.

Taisei Corporation

Takenaka Corporation

TOA CORPORATION

TODA CORPORATION

TSURUMI MANUFACTURING Co., Ltd.
YANMAR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT CO., LTD.
Others
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L E
General Meeting of the Shareholders
EFES

Auditors
LV E T
Board of Directors

HRE

Office of the President

PEBHIE =

Internal Control and Auditing Office

=
Legal Office
3

R

President

REHERE

Safety and Health Office

HERARE

Business Development Office
ERuEiEs

Business Process Reengineering Office

EEA

Operations Control Headquarters

ERGRERD

Business Coordination Headquarters

L2 IVRERR

Construction Equipment Rental Division
kiR RAR

Steel Sales Division

{RERIE IR RER

Information Products Division

B EHED

Overseas Business Division

EEERHEAER
Head Office Business Coordination
Headquarters

Administration Division

FOMER - EZBY
Business Administration Section, Procurement Section,
Business Support Section

B3
Administration Division

Administration Section, Personnel Section,
Facilities Management Section

AEIEER

Accounting Division

RE—R B EeR

Accounting Section 1, Accounting Section 2,
Treasury & Securities Section

RIEEEEER
Credit Management Division
AIEEER - BER
Credit Management Section, Credit Analysis Section
BRI ATLER
Information System Division
VRAFLYR—IR VAT LY 1—3avER
System Support Section, System Solutions Section
B2
Bill Collection Center
(LIR - 3R - KBR)

(Sapporo, Tokyo, Osaka)
EECE
Business Planning Division
vn B REEE
Quality Assurance Office

EEREE
Affiliated Business Office

hiERARE

Market Development Office

Za—-7nsIvE
New Products Office

FFARER

Used Products Sales Division

National Special Demand Sales Division
[IEHER - AR RER - BEEIER - R TR
National Sales Section, Ground Improvement Section,
Foundation Equipment Section,

Information-aided Construction Promotion Section

ANV MERED
Event Marketing Division

JbiEE X

Hokkaido Region
Et7Ovs -7 0yy - ERTOvs - =27 0yY - BRTOYY -
BEZOYY - 87 AvY - AEDE 4 — - FHEER - fRERER
Dohoku Block, Hokumou Block, Dotou Block, Sorachi Block,

Doou Block, Nittan Block, Donan Block, AED Center,
Specialized Equipment Division, Temporary Scaffolding Division

FRALHEX
Tohoku Region
CEFTOvy -METOvY-'mEIOYY -

HH
W 7avy - gegrnyy

Aomori Block, Iwate Block, Akita Block, Miyagi Block,
Yamagata Block, Fukushima Blocl

RR{SEtX
Kanto & Shinetsu Region
LRI Ovy - BEERF/Ovy - FEIQvs -®RIOvY -
#wE7avy - FEIOvy
Kitakanto Block, Gunma & Nagano Block, Chiba Block,
Tokyo Block, Kanagawa Block, Niigata Block

EIFEPERItX

Kansai & Chubu Region
eETOyy - RETOvy E%T OV
Hokuriku Block, Tokai Block, Kinki Block

I I
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(2015428337%) (As of February 2015)

H##{® Directors

€& Bh* Kanchu Kanamoto*

RREFHRAER
President and CEQ

R 1= * Hitoshi Narita*

EBER

Division Manager, Business Administration
Division

BEEF J&EZ * Hiroyuki Isono*®

RIBER
HRER
Division Manager, Administration Division
General Manager, Office of the President

FEEF #8— * Yuichi Asano*

EEEERHBR
Division Manager, Credit Management
Division

HR B2 Yasuyuki ljir

R

Outside Director

BEIE{® Auditors

& BB Tetsuo Kanamoto
Bt RMITIRE

EERIEATR

LY RIEERR

Senior Vice President and Corporate Officer

Executive Division Manager,
Business Coordination Headquarters

FH B— * Masakazu Hirata®
L > 2IVEEEBRIEEDR
AR R

mERIER

Deputy Division Manager, Construction Equipment Rental Division

Division Manager, Used Products Sales Division
Manager, Quality Assurance Office

€& FEB * Tatsuo Kanamoto*

LU BIVBRERBRIRERBR
EEXRIERR

BB XRERERR

SKEIERARR

Deputy Division Manager, Construction Equipment Rental Division
Regional Manager, Hokkaido Region Construction Equipment Rental Division
Regional Manager, Hokkaido Region Temporary Division
General Manager, Steel Sales Division

T3 B8 * Naoki Mukunashi*
B BEISR

Division Manager, Overseas Business Division

B E &3k Yoshihiro Nogami
BHTR

Outside Director

e

IpR= A Nobuhito Utatsu

EHYTRE
RIERRR

Senior Executive Corporate Officer
Division Manager, Accounting Division

b7 88— * Kaeiichi Kitakata*

L2 BIVEERIBER

Division Manager, Construction Equipment
Rental Division

RIG % * Manabu Nagasaki*

L &IVEEL
BISRIEHBX AR

Regional Manager, Kanto & Shinetsu Region
Construction Equipment Rental Division

B0 FOHR * Kazunor Hashiguehi*

BB RR
EXMRRER

Division Manager, information Products Division
General Manager, Market Development Office

£ %R Eichu Kanamoto

BHEER
Standing Corporate Auditor

it FBE Kiyohiro Tsuji
EEE
Outside Corporate Auditor

1M 1§22 Naoyuki Yokota
BHEER
Standing Corporate Auditor

E¥ Bg Akira Naoi

EE®
Outside Corporate Auditor

by

184 BBK Akio Hashimoto
BEER
Outside Corporate Auditor

B EF Koji Soga
BB
Outside Corporate Auditor

#1788 Corporate Officers

HED & Hiroshi Kumagai
B AT LR
Division Manager, Information System Division

GE 1) XENDEFHRIE. BATRBZFEL THVET.

(GE2) BRI KR OBAHEE EELR SRR THYET .
(13 BEGRARXERUETGEARE. BEEREARED CICERETREHNEE OutSide Cororat audhors,

BETHIVET .

CE4) BHAIEHHICBITIHEODHEERL THY ., —BRBEMEZEBLTHVET,
(G 5) R RISHER R OB RIBOMMIE R READRBEEFBL THVES.

& 18 Satoru Toiya

L ZIVEREBEBER
(FUMHsX$EY)

Regional Manager, Kyushu Region
Construction Equipment Rental Division

1. Asterisk indicates directors who hold the additional post of corporate officer.

2. Director Yasuyuki ljiri and director Yoshihiro Nogami are outside directors.

3. Auditor Akio Hashimoto, auditor Kiyohiro Tsuiji, auditor Akira Naoi and auditor Koji Soga are

4. Only the position titles at Kanamoto are shown, and official positions being performed

concurrently have been omitted.
5. Director Naoki Mukunashi and Director Kazunori Hashiguchi are serving concurrently as

Assistant to General Manager, Business Coordination Headquarters.
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= * Financial Section

Report of Operating Results and Financial Position for the 50th
Business Period (November 1, 2013 - October 31, 2014)

Matters Concerning the Corporate Group

Summary of consolidated fiscal year operating results
In the consolidated fiscal year under review, the economy
in Japan, underpinned by government economic and
financial policies, posted modest recovery trends, including
an improvement in corporate earnings and an increase
in capital investments. However, the economic outlook
remains unclear due in part to the impact the consumption
tax hike has had on private consumption and concerns of a
downturn in economies overseas.

In the construction-related business that is the Kanamoto
Group’s main business, public works demand continued to
increase owing to budgets allocated for reconstruction work
in quake-damaged regions, building national resilience,
and for disaster prevention. In addition, construction
equipment rental demand also continued to rise owing to
positive trends in private-sector construction investments.
Meanwhile, there were still concerns going forward, in
part due to the postponed startup of construction and
extended construction periods reflecting still high material
and equipment prices, and a lack of skilled labor.

Amidst such conditions, the Kanamoto Group drew up a
long-term vision dubbed BULL 55. As an action plan, the
company released BULL 53, a medium-term corporate
management plan that covers the fiscal year ending October
31, 2015 to the fiscal year ending October 31, 2017. The
goal of this medium-term corporate management plan
is to maximize Group strengths to build a management
infrastructure that is stable and with sustainable earnings in
the future. To this end, Kanamoto aims to further improve its
corporate value by (1) expanding the reach of Kanamoto’s
domestic base of operations, (2) improving the Group’s
overall operational structure by building a new system that
will serve as the Group’s infrastructure, and (3) expanding its
businesses overseas.

Consequently, in the fiscal year ended October 31, 2014, net
sales rose 13.3% from the prior consolidated fiscal year level
to ¥125,555 million. Meanwhile on the profit front, operating
income expanded 44.4% from the prior consolidated fiscal
year to ¥16,454 million and consolidated ordinary income

increased 45.2% year-on-year to ¥16,078 million. Net
income rose 60.1% over the prior consolidated fiscal year to
¥9,299 million.

Summary of consolidated operating results by busin-
ess segment

Business related to the Construction Equipment
Rental Division

In the construction-related business that is the main
business of Kanamoto, demand from public works projects
trended at a high level owing to the full-fledged startup of
reconstruction projects in quake-damaged regions and the
government’s execution of a 15-month budget for seamless
fiscal stimulus. Moreover, nationwide construction equipment
rental demand remained steady owing to stable construction
to fix deteriorating infrastructures in regions throughout
Japan and to prevent or alleviate natural disasters, and also
owing to the private-sector civil engineering work, including
railway, communications, gas, and harbor/port projects.

The Kanamoto Group is aggressively invested in facilities
to maximize its response to the aforementioned demand.
Consequently, sales rose year-on-year thanks to accurate
asset allocation and fortification of operations. That said,
sales sharply increased in all regions. Sales performance by
region for this segment is as follows: sales rose 11.4% in
the Hokkaido Region; 19.5% in the Tohoku Region; 6.3%
in the Kanto & Shinetsu Region; 15.2% in the Kansai &
Chubu Region; and 9.0% in the Kyushu & Okinawa Region
compared with the prior consolidated fiscal year.

Sales of used construction equipment rose 63.6% versus
the previous fiscal year, reflecting the systematic sale of
equipment that had been in service for a certain number of
years to ensure a reasonable asset composition.

As a result of these factors, net sales for Kanamoto’s
construction-related businesses for the consolidated
fiscal year under review increased 13.9% from the prior
consolidated fiscal year to ¥116,572 million, and operating
income climbed 45.7% year-on-year to ¥15,910 million.
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< Subsidiaries >

Kanamoto, Daiichi Kikaisangyo Co., Ltd., Kanki Corporation,
Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd., Toyo Industry Co., Ltd., Unite
Co., Ltd., and KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. are engaged in
construction equipment rental and sales.

Kyushu Kensan Co., Ltd. deals in rental and sales of
construction equipment centered on foundation equipment.
Toyo Industry Co., Ltd. handles the rental and sales of
equipment related to shield tunneling. Unite Co., Ltd.
conducts roadway construction equipment rental and sales
and roadway construction. KG Flowtechno Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiary Shanghai KG Machinery Co., Ltd. carry out
equipment rental and technical development, and also the
manufacture and sales of construction equipment for ground
improvement.

Assist Co., Ltd. and its affiliated Asahi Rentax Co., Ltd.

deal in the rental and sales of furniture, fixtures and safety
products. Kanatech Co., Ltd. engages in the design and sale
of modular housing units for temporary use.

These companies, depending on need, also lease rental
equipment from Kanamoto. In the same fashion, Kanamoto
leases rental equipment from these companies, which it in
turns leases out to other companies. Kanamoto purchases
modular housing units for temporary use from Kanatech Co.,
Ltd.

In China, Shanghai Jinheyuan Engineering Construction Co.,
Ltd. carries out construction equipment rental and sales,
and also imports construction materials and equipment.
Meanwhile, KANAMOTO (HK) CO., LTD. in Hong Kong and
Kanamoto & JP Nelson Equipment (S) PTE. Ltd. in Singapore
both handle construction equipment rentals and sales.

Fiscal Year ended October 31, 2014 Consolidated Operating Results

Net Sales Operating Income  Ordinary Income Net Income

(Millions of yen; % change from prior year)

Net Income per Share
of Common Stock

Consolidated Fiscal Year Under Review 125,555 (13.3) 16,454
Prior Consolidated Fiscal Year 110,831 (28.7) 11,392

(44.4) 16,078 (45.2) 9,299  (60.1) ¥ 2568.02
(r7.2) 11,073 (86.6) 5,809 (62.5) ¥ 175.50
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B Percentage of net sales by business (consolidated)

Consolidated Net Sales

125,555
13.3%.”

Divisional Sales

116,572

13.9. 8,963

6.0+

FY2014 FY2014 FY2014

Millions of yen; % change from prior year

Construction Equipment

Other Businesses

Rental Business

Percentage of net sales by business (onsoiidated)

Other Businesses

In Other Businesses, net sales increased 6.0% from the prior
consolidated fiscal year to ¥8,983 million, while operating
income also increased 5.9% year-on-year to ¥216 million,
reflecting steady sales at businesses related to the Steel
Sales Division and the Information Products Division.

< Subsidiaries >

Kanamoto Engineering Co., Ltd. manages specified worker
dispatching undertakings to dispatch engineering-related
research and development employees to manufacturers and
other entities.

Change in number of branches

During the consolidated fiscal year under review, Kanamoto

newly opened 2 branches and closed 2 branches.

New branches:  Rikuzentakata Branch (Rikuzentakata, Iwate
Prefecture), Osaka-Kita Branch (Takatsuki,
Osaka Prefecture)

Closed branches: Sendai-Nishi Branch (Aoba, Sendai,
Miyagi Prefecture), Mikasa Machinery
Center (Mikasa, Hokkaido Prefecture)

Main targets in the Medium-term Management Plan BULL 53

7.2%
92.8%

Medium-to Long-term Corporate Management Strategy
The Company’s medium-term corporate management
strategy is included in BULL 53, the Medium-term
Management Plan. In accordance with this plan, Kanamoto
plans to aggressively expand its operations base in the
Kanto & Shinetsu region, the home to major projects such
as infrastructure development and redevelopment projects
related to the Tokyo 2020 Olympic and Paralympic Games,
and build a structure that will enable the Company to bolster
earnings in the Tokyo metropolitan area, in line with medium-
to long-term demand forecasts. In addition, as a long-term
growth engine, Kanamoto aims to strategically move forward
with the development of an overseas base for operations,
mainly in the ASEAN nations, where demand potential is
high.

Net Sales ?Eiﬁ'gg — 5ps EBITDA+
(hundred i Equity Ratio (Ye) (Yer) ROA ROE (hundred
millions of yen) . millions of yen)
millions of yen)
Fiscal year ending 1,500 190 45%-plus 260 2,400 5%plus  10%-plus 500

October 31, 2017
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Outlook for the Next Fiscal Year (Fiscal year ending
October 2015)

Turning to the outlook for the next fiscal year, construction
demand is expected to remain strong mainly in the Tohoku
region and Tokyo metropolitan area, owing to the full-fledged
startup of reconstruction in quake-damaged areas, the
development of the Linear Shinkansen, the redevelopment
of areas around new stations on the Yamanote line, and
the start of construction related to the Tokyo 2020 Games.
However, looking at construction demand in other regions,
fiscal expenditures are trending downward, creating a murkier
outlook for public works and other demand. Furthermore, the
business climate is expected to be grimmer than a year earlier
due to unsuccessful bidding and delays in construction starts
reflecting still-high materials and equipment prices and as the
lack of skilled labor becomes the norm.

Going forward, the Kanamoto Group aims to continue to
assist in the quick restoration of disaster-stricken areas.

+* Financial Section

Concurrently, as the first step of the new Medium-term
Management Plan, the Company plans to accelerate branch
openings in the metropolitan areas of Kanto and Kansai, and
other under-served areas, and ultimately build a base for
operations to achieve the goals in the third and final year of its
Medium-term Management Plan. In addition, to continue to
expand corporate value, the Company plans to concentrate
management resources in fields in which it can leverage the
Group’s comprehensive capabilities. The Company aims to
build a structure to facilitate the fortification of its financial
position and earnings strength.

That said, with regard to overseas business expansion, the
Company aims to aggressively move forward by developing
partnerships with strong local companies, mainly in Asia
where there is future growth potential.

Fiscal year ending October 2015 Projected Operating Results (November 1, 2014 - October 31, 2015)

Net Income per Share

- ‘ Net Sales Operating Income  Ordinary Income Net Income of Common Stock
(Millions of yen; % change from prior year)
Consolidated full-year projection 128,600 (2.4) 16,960 (3.1) 16,610 (3.3) 9,520 (2.4) ¥264.15
Non-consolidated full-year projection 096,300 (2.1) — 14,190 (4.7) 8,500 (3.9) ¥235.85
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

October 31, 2013 October 31, 2014 October 31, 2013 October 31, 2014

ASSETS - . Thousands of U.S. LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - - Thousands of U.S.
Millions of yen Millions of yen Millions of yen Millions of yen
dollars (Note) dollars (Note)
Current assets : Current liabilities :
Cash and deposits ¥ 32,627 ¥ 31,650 $ 289,468 Notes and accounts payable-trade ¥ 21,293 ¥ 23,134 $ 211,584
Notes and accounts receivable-trade 27,731 33,651 307,767 Short-term loans payable 12,771 12,496 114,285
Securities 350 350 3,201 Lease obligations 1,085 995 9,103
Merchandise and finished goods 642 595 5,441 Accounts payable-other 12,728 16,460 150,545
Costs on uncompleted construction contracts 20 50 457 Income taxes payable 3,533 3,729 34,110
Raw materials and supplies 201 227 2,083 Provision for bonuses 823 850 7,776
Construction machine parts 3,954 6,566 60,051 Allowance for losses on employee pension fund withdrawal 200 — —
Deferred tax assets 983 656 6,001 Other 1,983 2,988 27,334
Other 790 559 5112 Total current liabilities 54,419 60,655 554,741
Allowance for doubtful accounts (835) (227) (2,077)
Total current assets 66,968 74,080 677,522 Non-current liabilities :
Long-term loans payable 26,288 21,698 198,447
Lease obligations 2,662 2,082 19,044
Non-current assets :
) Provision for retirement benefits 7 - -
Property, plant and equipment
Long-term accounts payable-other 29,329 37,853 346,201
Rental equipment 56,899 65,644 600,371
Asset retirement obligations 210 231 2,118
Buildings and structures 7,702 8,027 73,420
Net defined benefit liability = 16 149
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 619 659 6,032
Other 138 440 4,029
Tools, furniture and fixtures 227 293 2,680
Total noncurrent liabilities 58,638 62,322 569,989
Land 29,798 31,459 287,719
Total Liabilities 113,058 122,978 1,124,731
Construction in progress 75 256 2,347
Total property, plant and equipment 95,322 106,341 972,574
Net assets :
Intangibl t
IRENGIEEISSSES Shareholders' equity
Ceccl i o7 526 Capital stock 13,652 13,652 124,866
it 23l 208 1,906 Capital surplus 14,916 14,916 136,427
Totalintangibls assets 2 266 2,432 Retained earnings 24,462 32,860 300,530
Investments and other assets Treasury shares (48) (56) (517)
Investment securities 5,256 6,286 57,491 Total shareholders’ equity 52,983 61,373 561,307
Deferred tax assets 147 265 2,425 Accumulated other comprehensive income
Other 1,894 1,854 16,957 Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 1,567 1,977 18,086
Allowance for doubtful accounts (541) (491) (4,494) Foreign currency translation adjustment 1) 14 134
Allowance for investment loss (67) (110) (1,006) Total accumulated other comprehensive income 1,566 1,992 18,220
Total investments and other assets 6,689 7,804 71,374 Minority interests 1,643 2,147 19,643
Total non-current assets 102,282 114,411 1,046,380 Total Net Assets 56,192 65,513 599,172
Total Assets ¥ 169,250 ¥ 188,491 $ 1,723,903 Total Liabilities and Net Assets ¥ 169,250 ¥ 188,491 $1,723,903
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Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income

Prior Consolidated
Fiscal Year Current Consolidated Fiscal Year
(From November 1, 2012 (From November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014)
to October 31, 2013)

Thousands of U.S.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
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Prior Consolidated
Fiscal Year Current Consolidated Fiscal Year
(From November 1, 2012 (From November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014)
to October 31, 2013)

Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen Millions of yen dollars (Note)

Income before minority interests ¥ 6,146 ¥9,734 $ 89,025
Other comprehensive income

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 1,236 409 3,740

Foreign currency translation adjustment 74 19 173

Total other comprehensive income 1,310 429 3,923
Comprehensive income 7,454 10,164 92,957
Comprehensive income attributable to

Comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 7,098 9,725 88,942

Comprehensive income attributable to minority interests ¥ 358 ¥ 439 $ 4,014

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (November 1, 2012 - October 31, 2014)

Shareholders’ equity

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Millions of yen Millions of yen dollars (Note)
Net sales ¥ 110,831 ¥ 125,555 $ 1,148,301
Cost of sales 76,522 85,334 780,450
Gross profit 34,309 40,220 367,850
Selling, general and administrative expenses 22,916 23,766 217,361
Operating income 11,392 16,454 150,489
Non-operating income
Interest income 67 99 908
Rent income 58 57 528
Insurance income 84 33 304
Foreign exchange gains 223 183 1,681
Amortization of negative goodwill 51 — —
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 19 79 725
Other 263 260 2,384
Total non-operating income 768 714 6,532
Non-operating expenses
Interest expenses 824 609 5,576
Loss on sales of notes payable 41 34 319
Other 223 445 4,076
Total non-operating expenses 1,088 1,090 9,971
Ordinary income 11,073 16,078 147,049
Extraordinary income
Gain on sales of non-current assets 34 37 338
Subsidy income 36 12 112
Reversal of provision incurred from business combination 56 — —
Other 1 0 0
Total extraordinary income 127 49 452
Extraordinary losses
Loss on sales and retirement of non-current assets 95 215 1,967
Impairment loss 217 — -
Loss on valuation of investment securities 187 — —
Loss on revision of retirement benefit plan = 43 399
Other 13 — —
Total extraordinary losses 514 258 2,366
Income before income taxes and minority interests 10,686 15,869 145,134
Income taxes - current 4,856 5,849 53,499
Income taxes - deferred (815) 284 2,606
Total income taxes 4,540 6,134 56,106
Income before minority interests 6,146 9,734 89,028
Minority interests in income 336 435 3,982
Net income ¥ 5809 ¥ 9,299 $ 85,046

Number of , , ot Netuweaized  Foreign achr?]t&Iated o

sharesof Common  Capital  Retained  Treasury shareholders’ holoing gain ~ currency ther Minority  Total net

common  stock surplus  eamings  stock oqu (loss) on other  translation comprehersiie interests  assets
stock securfies — adjustments ™ yeome

ITEIRETES Millions of yen

Balance at November 1, 2012 32,872 ¥ 9696 ¥10,960 ¥19,199  ¥(27) ¥39,829 ¥ 331 ¥ (54) ¥ 276 ¥1293 ¥41,399
Issuance of new shares 3,220 3,956 3,956 7,912 - 7,912
Cash dividends (656) (656) = (656)
Net income 5,809 5,809 = 5,809
Change of scope of consolidation 109 109 = 109
Acquisition of treasury stock (20) (20) = (20)
Other - 1,236 53 1,289 349 1,639

Balance at October 31, 2013 36,092 ¥13,652 ¥14,916 ¥24,462 ¥(48) ¥52983 ¥1567 ¥ (1) ¥1566 ¥1,643 ¥56,192
Cash dividends (901) (901) = (901)
Net income 9,299 9,299 = 9,299
Acquisition of treasury stock 8 8) — (8)
Other - 409 16 426 504 930

Balance at October 31, 2014 36,092 ¥13,652 ¥14,916 ¥32,860 ¥(56) ¥61,373 ¥1977 ¥ 14 ¥1,992 ¥2147 ¥65513

) . otal
Common  Cepital ~ Retained ~ Treasury shargﬁg!j - Nr?élg%geigi?d ciorgr?gy accmg?ted Minority  Total net
stock surplus  earnings stock equi onother  translation compeensie interests ~ assets
secuities  adjustments e
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note)

Balance at October 31, 2013 $124,866 $136,427 $223,724 $(443) $484,575 $14,338  $ (15) $14,322 $15,029 $513,927
Cash dividends (8,240) (8,240) — (8,240)
Net income 85,046 85,046 — 85,046
Acquisition of treasury stock (73) (73) = (73)
Other - 3,748 149 3,898 4,614 8,512

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.

Balance at October 31, 2014 $124,866 $ 136,427 $ 300,530

$(517) $561,307 $18,086 $134 $18,220 $19,643 $599,172
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Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Prior Consolidated Prior Consolidated
Fiscal Year Current Consolidated Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Current Consolidated Fiscal Year
(From November 1, 2012 (From November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014) (From November 1, 2012 (From November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014)
to October 31, 2013) to October 31, 2013)
Millions of yen Millions of yen Thggﬁzpsd(ch:)ft;.S. Millions of yen Millions of yen Thggﬁgpg(sN%ft;.S.
Cash flows from operating activities: Cash flows from investing activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 10,686 ¥ 15,869 $145,134 Payments into time deposits — ¥  (340) $ (3,109)
Depreciation 15,181 17,950 164,173 Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits = 340 3,109
| i t — — .
PRI (258 Al Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,092) (3,102) (28,373)
Amortization of goodwill 29 26 244 )
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 100 40 366
Loss (gain) on sales and retirement of non-current assets 60 178 1,628
) Purchase of intangible assets (123) (84) (775)
The amount of assets buy on the installment plan purchase for small rentals 4 0 4
The amount of cost price transfer with the construction machine parts sale 9 8 76 AN e TS 28] @11) (2,:846)
The amount of cost price transfer with asset sell-off for rentals 866 684 6,259 Proceeds from sales of investment securities 1 0 5
Expenditure by the construction equipment and supplies (64) (124) (1,136) Purchase of shares of subsidiaries — (27) (250)
Expenditure by the assets acquisition for rentals (3,047) (2,633) (24,086) Purchase of shares of subsidiaries and associates e (66) (610)
Loss (gain) on valuation of investment securities 187 — — Payments of loans receivable (76) (5) (54)
Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities (1) — — Collection of loans receivable 418 165 1,509
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts (12) (183) (1,682) Other, net (1) 17 163
i i = 42 : L ) o
EfEEEe EEAEEEE) N B ETeS el (MVESmERD (355 384 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,117) (3,374) (30,866)
Increase (decrease) in provision for bonuses 54 26 240 . . o
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in provision for retirement benefits 6 — —
: - : Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans payable (322) 3 32
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on disaster (10) — —
Increase (decrease) in allowance for losses on employee pension fund withdrawal 200 (200) (1,829) PrEBESEIS el BEHIET S [PEESIE 13,200 8,700 79,568
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability - 8 77 Repayments of long-term loans payable (18,762) (13,726) (125,542)
Interest and dividend income 67) (99) (908) Proceeds from issuance of common shares 7912 - -
Assets buy on the installment plan purchase payment interest for rentals 243 347 3,177 Repayments of installment payables (10,841) (15,132) (138,395)
Interest expenses 824 609 5,576 Repayments of lease obligations (2,040) (1,347) (12,328)
Foreign exchange losses (gains) (160) (138) (1,263) Purchase of treasury shares (20) (8) (73)
Reversal of provision incurred from business combination (65) — — Purchase of treasury shares of subsidiaries _ ©) ©)
Ly iSi i i = - :
0SS on revision of retirement benefit plan 43 399 Gash dividends pald (656) (899) (8,227)
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable - trade (4,107) (5,833) (53,353) : o
Proceeds from share issuance to minority shareholders — 8 75
Decrease (increase) in inventories (72) (6) (57)
) Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders (1) (3) (27)
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable - trade 3,331 2,029 18,561
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - other 1,031 1,728 15,810 Net cash provided by (used i) financing activities (6,532) (22,405) (204,919)
Ot M 114 941 8.608 Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents 134 21 193
Subtotal 25 452 31,275 286,040 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,244 (976) (8,934)
Interest and dividend income received 67 99 208 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 19,717 32,957 301,421
Interest expenses paid (1,087) (969) (8,865) Decrease in cash and cash equivalents resulting from exclusion of @) . _
Income taxes paid (3,672) (5,622) (51,425) subsidiaries from consolidation
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ¥ 20,759 ¥ 24,782 $ 226,657 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ¥32,957 ¥ 31,980 $ 292,486

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS

October 31, 2013

October 31, 2014

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

+* Financial Section

October 31, 2013

October 31, 2014

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note)

Current assets :
Cash and deposits
Notes receivable, trade
Accounts receivable, trade
Securities
Merchandise and finished goods
Costs on uncompleted construction contracts
Construction machine parts
Raw materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Short-term loans receivable
Other
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total current assets
Non-current assets :
Property, plant and equipment
Rental equipment
Buildings
Structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Tools, furniture and fixtures
Land
Construction in progress
Total property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Other
Total intangible assets
Investments and other assets
Investment securities
Shares of subsidiaries and associates
Investments in capital
Long-term loans receivable from subsidiaries and associates
Claims provable in bankruptcy, claims provable in rehabilitation and other
Long-term prepaid expenses
Insurance funds
Other
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for investment loss
Total investments and other assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

Y 27,828 ¥ 25752 $ 235,522
3,238 6,401 58,547
15,669 18,329 167,635

350 350 3,201
343 327 2,993
20 50 465
3,954 6,566 60,051
113 130 1,196
241 258 2,362
721 469 4,291
316 240 2,199
212 240 2,203
191) (124) (1,136)
52,819 58,992 539,534
41,695 49,391 451,722
5,567 5,594 51,162
1,019 1,134 10,373
536 576 5,268
9 8 74

160 227 2,077
28,958 30,534 279,262
31 254 2,325
77,977 87,719 802,268
19 0 2
188 129 1,183
208 129 1,186
4,868 5,766 52,737
3,921 4,864 44,494
12 12 111
2,468 2,401 21,959
92 45 416

21 25 229

27 25 237
878 926 8,468
(1,621) (1,094) (10,012)
(461) (1,031) (9,431)
10,207 11,941 109,218
88,393 99,791 912,672
¥ 141,213 ¥ 158,784 $1,452,207
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Current liabilities :
Notes payable-trade
Accounts payable-trade
Current portion of long-term loans payable
Accounts payable-other
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Provision for bonuses
Notes payable-facilities
Other
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities :
Long-term loans payable
Long-term accounts payable-other
Deferred tax liabilities
Asset retirement obligations
Total non-current liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets :
Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock
Capital surplus
Legal capital surplus
Other capital surplus
Total capital surpluses
Retained earnings
Legal retained earnings
Other retained earnings
Reserve for advanced depreciation of non-current assets
General reserve
Retained earnings brought forward
Total retained earnings
Treasury stock
Total shareholders’ equity
Valuation and translation adjustments
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Total valuation and translation adjustments
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

¥ 12,892 ¥ 14,114 $ 129,091
3,813 4,443 40,635
10,190 10,103 92,405
10,242 13,265 121,320
453 474 4,342
2,599 3,244 29,669
529 544 4,979
542 748 6,842
395 968 8,855
41,660 47,906 438,143
21,703 17,684 161,737
24,280 31,672 289,666
120 407 3,729
141 145 1,327
46,246 49,909 456,461
87,906 97,816 894,604
13,652 13,652 124,866
14,773 14,773 135,116
143 143 1,311
14,916 14,916 136,427
1,375 1,375 12,578
21,871 29,151 266,610
19 19 179
15,731 19,731 180,461
6,119 9,399 85,969
23,246 30,526 279,188
(48) (56) (517)
51,767 59,039 539,965
1,539 1,928 17,637
1,539 1,928 17,637
53,307 60,968 557,602

¥ 141,213 ¥ 158,784 $ 1,452,207

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

Non-Consolidated Statements of Income Non-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (November 1, 2012 - October 31, 2014)
(Froi:il?lrog?s;r?g&z Current Fiscal Year Shareholders’ equity (ﬁﬁgf Enc?ugr?;?g.
o October 31, 2013) (From November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014) hensive income
Number of Net unrealized
- - Thousands of U.S. shares of Common Capital Retained Treasury holding gain ~ Total net
il @rgEr Millions of yen dollars (Note) common stock surplus earnings stock”  (oss)onother  assets
stock securities
Total net sales ¥ 81,360 ¥ 94,301 $ 862,458 Thousands of Millions of
Total cost of sales 56,508 64,117 586,408 shares vl
Gross profit 24,852 30,183 276,049 Balance at November 1, 2012 32,872 ¥ 9,696 ¥ 10,960 ¥ 18,986 ¥ (27) ¥ 336 ¥ 39,952
Selling, general and administrative expenses 15,925 16,749 153,191 Issuance of new shares 3,220 3,956 3,956 — 7,912
Operating income 8,926 13,433 122,858 Cash dividends — (656) (656)
Non-operating income Net income = 4,916 4,916
Interest income 94 140 1,284 Acquisition of treasury stock — — (20) (20)
Rent income 240 288 2,640 Other - - 1,208 1,203
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts — 528 4,833 Balance at October 31, 2013 36,092 ¥ 13,652 ¥ 14,916 ¥ 23,246 ¥ (48) ¥1,539 ¥ 53,307
Other 379 446 4,081 Cash dividends - (901) (901)
Total non-operating income 714 1,403 12,840 Net income — 8,181 8,181
Non-operating expenses Provision of general reserve — — —
Interest expenses 355 264 2,415 Acquisition of treasury stock - - () ®)
Loss on sales of notes payable 38 32 293 Other = = 389 389
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts 176 5 45 Balance at October 31, 2014 36,092 ¥ 13,652 ¥ 14,916 ¥ 30,526 ¥ (56) ¥ 1,928 ¥ 60,968
Provision of allowance for investment loss 11 634 5,805
Other 197 349 3,191 . Accumulated
) Shareholders’ equity other compre-
Total non-operating expenses () 1,286 11,764 hensive income
Ordinary income 8,861 13,550 123,934 Net unrealized
S el el Temy nodtged Tohod
Gain on sales of non-current assets 0 4 42 securities
Gain on sales of investment securities 1 — — Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note)
Subsidy income 7 0 Balance at October 31, 2013 $124,866 $136,427 $ 212,606 $ (443) $ 14,078 $ 487,535
Other 0 0 Cash dividends = (8,240) (8,240)
Total extraordinary income 8 4 45 Net income - 74,821 74,821
Extraordinary loss Provision of general reserve = = —
Loss on sales and retirement of non-current assets 79 187 1,713 Acquisition of treasury stock - - (73) (73)
Loss on valuation of investment securities 187 — — Other = = 3,558 3,558
Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates 200 — — Balance at October 31, 2014 $124,866 $136,427 $279,184 $ (517) $17,637  $557,600
Total extraordinary losses 467 187 1,713 Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
Income before income taxes 8,402 13,368 122,265
Income taxes-current 3,743 4,859 44,444
Income taxes-deferred (256) 327 2,998
Total income taxes 3,486 5,187 47,443
Net income ¥ 4,916 ¥ 8,181 $ 74,822

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen for convenience only, at the rate ¥109.34=US$1, the approximate exchange rate on October 31, 2014.
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Report of the Independent Public Accountants Concerning the Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Public Accountants December 17, 2014
Kanamoto Co., Ltd.
To: The Board of Directors

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC.
Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner

Certified Public Accountant Yasushi Ishiwaka

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner
Certified Public Accountant Hiroyasu ltagaki

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statement of changes in net assets and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, which comprise the consolidated financial statements of Kanamoto Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) applicable to the 50th Business
Period from November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014, for the purpose of reporting under the provisions of Article 444 paragraph 4 of the Companies Act.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing
standards, procedures and practices generally applied in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected and applied depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and results of opera-
tions of the corporate group, which consisted of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, applicable to the 50th Business Period ended October 31, 2014
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Conflicts of interest
There are no interests between the Company and Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC or its Partners that should be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified
Public Accountants Law.

The audit reports concerning the Company’s financial position (financial statements in Japanese for the 12 months ended October 31, 2014) are prepared by Ernst
& Young ShinNihon LLC.
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Report of the Independent Public Accountants Concerning the Financial Statements

Report of Independent Public Accountants
Kanamoto Co., Ltd.
To: The Board of Directors

December 17, 2014

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC.
Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner

Certified Public Accountant Yasushi Ishiwaka

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Managing Partner
Certified Public Accountant Hiroyasu ltagaki

We have audited the Balance Sheet, Statement of Income, Statement of Changes in Net Assets and the related schedules of Kanamoto Company, Ltd. for the
50th Business Period, from November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014, for the purpose of reporting under the provisions of Article 436 paragraph 2 (i) of the
Companies Act.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and the Related Supplementary Schedules

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the related supplementary
schedules. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and the related supplementary schedules, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules in order to design audit procedures that are appropri-
ate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements and the related supplementary schedules referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and
results of operations of the company applicable to the 50th Business Period ended March 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan.

Conflicts of interest
There are no interests between the Company and Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC or its Partners that should be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified
Public Accountant Law.

The audit reports concerning the Company’s financial position (financial statements in Japanese for the 12 months ended October 31, 2014) are prepared by Ernst
& Young ShinNihon LLC.
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Reports

Audit Report

The Audit Committee has received the audit reports prepared by each of the auditors concerning the business performance of the directors
during the 50th Business Period from November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014. After discussing the audit results based on the reports,
we have prepared this Audit Report and report as follows as the consensus of opinion of the Audit Committee.

1. Procedures and details of the audits by the Auditors and the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee establishes the audit policies, allocation of duties and other matters, and receives reports concerning the implementa-
tion of audits and the audit result from each of the auditors as well as reports from the directors and independent auditors concerning the
execution of their duties, and requests explanations as necessary.
In addition to communicating with the Directors, the internal audit division, employees and other individuals in accordance with the stan-
dards for auditors and audits provided by the Audit Committee and in compliance with the audit policy and audit plan, and gathering
information and striving to improve the audit environment, each Corporate Auditor attended the Board of Directors meetings and other
important meetings, received reports from Directors, employees and other individuals on their execution of duties and requested expla-
nations from the Directors, other employees and other individuals when necessary, reviewed documents concerning matters such as
important decisions and conducted inspections of the business and financial condition at the Company’s Head Office and main branches.
Each Corporate Auditor also regularly received reports from the Company’s directors and system users, and requested explanations and
clarified opinions when necessary, regarding the contents of Board of Director resolutions concerning the establishment of the organization
provided in Article 100 paragraph (1) and paragraph (3) of the Companies Act Enforcement Ordinance, and the status of operation of the
organization (internal controls organization) that has been established based on said resolutions, as the organization necessary to ensure
Company directors comply with laws and the Company'’s Articles of Incorporation in the execution of their duties as described in the Report
of Business Operations and to ensure the appropriateness of other Company operations. They communicated and exchanged information
with the directors and auditors of the subsidiary companies concerning the subsidiary companies, and received business reports from the
subsidiary companies as necessary. Based on the procedures described above, they studied the Report of Business Operations and the
supporting schedules pertaining to the business period.
In addition, the Corporate Auditors monitored and verified whether the independent auditor maintained an independent viewpoint and
implemented a proper audit, and received a report from the independent auditor concerning the execution of its audit, and requested
explanations as necessary. The Audit Committee also received notification from the independent auditors that the “systems to ensure
duties are performed appropriately” (as described in each of the items under Article 131 of the Corporate Accounting Regulations) had
been established in accordance with the Standards for Quality Control of Audits (Business Accounting Council, October 28, 2005), and
requested explanations as necessary. Based on the above procedures, the Audit Committee reviewed the Financial Statements (Balance
Sheet, Statement of Income, Statement of Changes in Net Assets and Notes to the Financial Statements) and the supporting schedules
and the Consolidated Financial Statements (Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Income, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Net Assets and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements) for the business period.

2. Result of audit
(1) Result of audit of the Report of Business Operations

(a) The Report of Business Operations and its supporting schedules fairly represent the condition of the Company in accordance with
the laws of Japan and the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

(b) We have determined that there were no serious occurrences of dishonest or false activity or violations of any laws or the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation by any of the directors in carrying out the duties and responsibilities of their offices.

(c) In our opinion, the details of the Board of Directors resolutions concerning the internal controls system are appropriate. We also have
determined that there are no matters that should be highlighted as a concern with regard to the information contained in the Report
of Business Operations and the directors in carrying out their duties concerning the internal controls system.

(2) Result of audit of the Financial Statements and supporting schedules
In our opinion, the audit procedures and audit results received from the independent public accounting firm Ernst & Young ShinNihon
LLC are appropriate.

(3) Result of audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
In our opinion, the audit procedures and audit results received from the independent public accounting firm Ernst & Young ShinNihon
LLC are appropriate.

December 25, 2014
Kanamoto Co., Ltd. Audit Committee
Standing Corporate Auditor Shinroku Sawada
Standing Corporate Auditor Eichu Kanamoto
Standing Corporate Auditor Naoyuki Yokota
Qutside Corporate Auditor Akio Hashimoto
Outside Corporate Auditor  Kiyohiro Tsuiji
QOutside Corporate Auditor  Akira Naoi

The audit reports concerning the Company’s financial position (financial statements in Japanese for the 12 months ended October 31, 2014) are prepared by Audit
Committee of Kanamoto Co., Ltd.
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Stock Information (As of October 31, 2014)
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Stock Code
9678

Number of shares issued
36,092 thousand

Fiscal year-end
October 31

Regular General Meeting of the Shareholders
During January of each year

Date of record with respect to voting rights at a Regular
General Meeting
October 31

Date of record for distribution of interim dividends
April 30

Date of record for distribution of year-end dividends
October 31

Method of public notice
Kanamoto’s website, Nihon Keizai Shinbun s

*Public notices of Kanamoto Co., Ltd. will be released on Kanamoto's web-
site (http://www.kanamoto.co.jp and https://www.kanamoto.ne.jp).
When the Company cannot make electronic notification because of un-
avoidable reasons, the public notices of the Company will be published in
the Nihon Keizai Shinbun.

Transfer agent
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

Administrative Office
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation Transfer Agent Division
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Mailing address and telephone number

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation Transfer Agent Division
T 137-8081 10-11, Higashisuna 7-chome, Koto-ku, Tokyo
TEL:0120-232-711
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RIT:HERX DE2E Number of shares issued

285 % Total number of shareholders

Bk PrE &% 9 %R1KR | Distribution of shares by shareholder type

36,092,241

7,546

AN - 2D 80,497 (22.3%)

Individuals and other

HNEEANF

90,192(25.0%)

(87t /Trading units)

TR 108,933 (30.2%)

Foreign corporations, etc.

Financial institutions

TR I%E 4,306 ( 1.2%)

Registered financial instruments firms

ZDMDIEN 76,804 (21.3%)

GE1) BTHR52,9304kD 55 5298 TIEMBEA - ZDfICED TERHLTHIET,
GE2) TZDHIDEA ISR E RS HEAE ORI NRETEENTHYET,
(GE3) 1ETOMEIE 10085 T,

(Note 1) Of 52,930 treasury stock shares, 529 units are included in “Individuals and other.”
(Note 2) “Other corporations” includes 42 units of shares held in the name of the Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc.
(Note 3) The number of shares of one trading unit is 100 shares.

#{fiF+—I | Share price chart

Other corporations

F3/yen
5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

Kh)

T+|....,|¢.

l':]'l':'

ﬂq’r*mhl‘éjd: iy

I

2013/2

2013/6

2013/10

2014/2

2014/6

2014/10 2015/2

Kanamoto 2015 | 79 |



